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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Good morning. I

          3  just want to apologize for the delay of this

          4  Committee Hearing. My name is Diana Reyna and I am

          5  Chair of the Committee on Rules, Privileges and

          6  Elections. Before I begin, I would like to take the

          7  opportunity to introduce the members of this

          8  Committee.

          9                 I have to my right Council Member Lew

         10  Fidler from Brooklyn, Council Member David Weprin

         11  from Queens, Council Member Eric Dilan from

         12  Brooklyn, Council Member Melinda Katz from Queens,

         13  Council Member Inez Dickens from Manhattan, Council

         14  Member Maria Baez from the Bronx, and to the front

         15  of us, we have Council Member Jimmy Oddo from Staten

         16  Island, and Council Member Simcha Felder from

         17  Brooklyn.

         18                 Are there any other members here?

         19  Fantastic.

         20                 Today we have before us two

         21  candidates for the Council's advice and consent.

         22  They are up for an appointment for the New York City

         23  Board of Standards and Appeals. Dara Ottley-Brown, a

         24  resident of the Bronx, Mayoral appointment to the

         25  Board of Standard and Appeals, as a lay member
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          2  filling a vacancy for the remainder of a six-year

          3  term that expires on July 10th, 2007.

          4                 We have been joined by Domenic

          5  Recchia from Brooklyn.

          6                 Susan Hinkson, a resident of the

          7  Bronx, Mayoral appointment to the Board of Standards

          8  and Appeals, as an architect. Ms. Hinkson will be

          9  eligible to serve for the remainder of a six-year

         10  term that expires on July 10th, 2007, as well. She

         11  will replace Satish Babar, who will be resigning

         12  from the Board.

         13                 Before we interview each candidate,

         14  I'd like to briefly explain the functions of the

         15  Board of Standards and Appeals.

         16                 The Board of Standards and Appeals

         17  consists of five Commissioners, each appointed by

         18  the Mayor for a term of six years. The City Charter

         19  provides that one of the Board's members shall be a

         20  planner with professional qualifications and at

         21  least ten years experience as a planner.

         22                 One of the members shall be a

         23  registered architect and shall have at least ten

         24  years experience as an architect, and one of the

         25  members shall be licensed professional engineer, and
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          2  shall have at least ten years experience as an

          3  engineer.

          4                 The particular qualifications of the

          5  two remaining members are not delineated in the

          6  Charter. The Mayor designates one of the members

          7  with the required experience of an architect,

          8  planner or engineer to serve as Chair, and

          9  designates another member to serve as a Vice Chair.

         10                 In the absence of the Chair or in the

         11  event that a vacancy exists in the office of the

         12  Chair, the Vice Chair acts as Chair of the Board. No

         13  more than two members reside in any one borough.

         14                 Each member of the Board receives a

         15  salary and may not engage in any other occupation,

         16  profession or employment. The Chair earns an annual

         17  salary of $166,884. The Vice Chair receives $155,205

         18  annually, while the remaining members earn annual

         19  salaries of $131,318.

         20                 The Board has the power to determine

         21  and vary the application of the zoning resolution

         22  and to issue special permits as authorized by the

         23  zoning resolution.

         24                 The Board may also consider appeals

         25  to vary or modify any rule or regulation or the
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          2  provisions of any law relating to the construction,

          3  use, structural changes, equipment, alteration, or

          4  removal of buildings or structures, or vaults in

          5  sidewalks appurtenant thereto where there are

          6  practical difficulties or unnecessary hardship in

          7  carrying out the strict letter of the law, so that

          8  the spirit of the law shall be observed, public

          9  safety secured and substantial justice done.

         10                 We will begin with Ms. Ottley-Brown.

         11                 Will you please raise your right hand

         12  and be sworn in by our counsel, Ms. Barbara Butler.

         13                 MS. BUTLER: Do you swear to tell the

         14  truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: And if you can

         16  just turn on your microphone, there is a button,

         17  when it's on you're on, and if you can just repeat

         18  that.

         19                 Speak into the mic, and you can move

         20  it.

         21                 MS. OTTLEY-BROWN: I do swear.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you.

         23                 Ms. Ottley-Brown, if you'd like, and

         24  have a prepared statement, now is the time to do so.

         25                 MS. OTTLEY-BROWN: I have a prepared

                                                            8

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  statement.

          3                 Good afternoon. My name is Dara

          4  Ottley-Brown, and I am a lifelong resident of the

          5  Bronx. I come before you today to seek approval for

          6  my appointment as Commissioner on the Board of

          7  Standards and Appeals.

          8                 So that you may better judge my

          9  abilities, I would like to tell you a little about

         10  my background and qualifications.

         11                 I received my Bachelor of Arts from

         12  Hunter College of the City University of New York.

         13  My major was sociology. After attending a graduate

         14  degree program in political science for two years at

         15  the graduate faculty of the New School for Social

         16  Research, I applied for a position as a commercial

         17  data collector at the Department of Finance.

         18                 This began a career of almost 20

         19  years, all within the Department of Finance, during

         20  which I acquired an education in real property

         21  evaluation and tax administration.

         22                 I consider myself very lucky, and

         23  that I was able to learn and work in the real

         24  property tax field. Not only did my studies and work

         25  history encompass real property valuation when I
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          2  served as an assessor, but I educated myself in

          3  valuation modeling when I worked on the

          4  computer-assisted mass appraisal system, tax

          5  collection when I ran the Manhattan City Collector's

          6  Office, and property records management when I ran

          7  the Bronx City's registrar's office.

          8                 This hands-on work experience in the

          9  field of real property taxation uniquely qualified

         10  me to manage the Property Division, a post that I

         11  have held for almost three years.

         12                 In this capacity, I've experienced

         13  both managerial and operational challenges. I had

         14  the opportunity to manage a large technically

         15  trained work force with all of the personnel

         16  challenges, as well as the opportunity to steer a

         17  division towards its goals by creating clear and

         18  transparent policies that are easy to understand and

         19  easy to implement.

         20                 During my tenure as Assistant

         21  Commissioner of the Property Division, the Division

         22  underwent a great transformation. The division was

         23  mired and complicated and convoluted policies and

         24  practices that made the results seem arbitrary, at

         25  the very least, and unfair and corrupt at its worst.
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          2  Through a restructuring of the organization and

          3  review and refinement of policies and procedures,

          4  the Division is now well on its way towards being

          5  data driven with results that are statistically

          6  sound.

          7                 However, my official record only

          8  tells half the story. While I am a New Yorker born

          9  and bred, it is not a title that was foisted upon

         10  me. Over and over again, I choose to make New York

         11  City, particularly the Bronx, home. I wouldn't dream

         12  of living anywhere else, for this City offers a host

         13  of opportunities seldom seen anywhere else in this

         14  country.

         15                 I am currently a Riverdale resident,

         16  a working mother of three children. All students in

         17  the New York City public school system.

         18                 For instance, my oldest daughter is a

         19  student of the Fiorello H. LaGuardia High School of

         20  Music and Art and Performing Arts. Where else could

         21  my daughter, a talented artist, enjoy a superb

         22  visual arts education in high school at no extra

         23  cost to her family?

         24                 I guess what I'm trying to say is

         25  that I love New York City, and it is this great love
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          2  that inspires me to serve the public and serve the

          3  City to help it reach its true potential.

          4                 This is why the position at the Board

          5  of Standards and Appeals is so attractive to me, to

          6  have a chance to shape urban development through the

          7  interpretation of various laws and regulations.

          8  Governing construction and physical change in this

          9  City would help me to realize my dream.

         10                 This being said, I thank you for

         11  taking the time to review my application and

         12  consider my appointment, and I would be happy to

         13  answer any and all questions.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Fantastic. I want

         15  to open any opportunity for colleagues to address

         16  Ms. Ottley-Brown. If you wish to do so, please let

         17  Council know Miss Barbara Butler. I'd like to just

         18  refer to Miss Ottley-Brown, the fact that you have

         19  sought the guidance of the New York City Conflicts

         20  of Interest Board regarding whether or not you could

         21  take a leave of absence from your current employment

         22  with the New York City Department of Finance, and if

         23  you were appointed to the BSA, or if you had to

         24  resign, to you agree to abide by the Conflict of

         25  Interest Board decision?
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          2                 MS. OTTLEY-BROWN: Absolutely, I do

          3  agree.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: And to this moment

          5  you're still awaiting a decision?

          6                 MS. OTTLEY-BROWN: Correct.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: You have not been

          8  communicated by the Conflicts of Interest Board yet?

          9                 MS. OTTLEY-BROWN: No.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you.

         11                 Any colleagues have any questions

         12  concerning Ms. Ottley-Brown?

         13                 Council Member McMahon.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you,

         15  Madam Chairwoman. Ms. Ottley-Brown, my name is

         16  Michael McMahon. I represent a district in Staten

         17  Island. One of the great concerns I have is with the

         18  appointments today, there will be no residents of

         19  the Borough of Staten Island who will be sitting on

         20  BSA. That's a great concern for me, and certainly

         21  every borough is distinct and unique and we also

         22  share many problems, but Staten Island is a borough

         23  that faces severe overdevelopment, in many ways it's

         24  referred to as a Wild West, inability to enforce

         25  laws, and even we have undertaken a great effort
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          2  working with the Administration for the Growth

          3  Management Task Force to redo a lot of the zoning

          4  laws and try to bring a semblance of order, yet in

          5  every case, where there are builders or developers

          6  who don't like them, they run to the BSA to seek

          7  variances and to circumvent those rules that we've

          8  worked so hard to implement.

          9                 What is your philosophy on granting

         10  of variances to building regulations and zoning

         11  resolutions that really have no real, that have no

         12  ambiguity in them, yet there is claimed ambiguity by

         13  the proponents and they run to BSA and get

         14  variances?

         15                 If you just give me your philosophy

         16  on the notion of granting variances?

         17                 MS. OTTLEY-BROWN: Well, first I

         18  wanted to address the first part of your statement,

         19  and your concern about there being a lack of

         20  representation or sensitivity to Staten Island,

         21  because of my residence in the Bronx.

         22                 While I am a resident in the Bronx, I

         23  have spent quite a few years working in different

         24  boroughs through my job in Department of Finance,

         25  and I have become familiar with a lot of the
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          2  different issues that are confronting other

          3  boroughs.

          4                 Also, within my career, I've been

          5  quite sensitive and responsive to all of the issues

          6  facing various members of the public. I fully expect

          7  to retain my sensitivity and my understanding of the

          8  different issues that face the different boroughs.

          9                 As far as the issues concerning

         10  granting variances where there may not be any

         11  apparent reason for that, I can't really speak on

         12  that issue because I'm not part of the Board yet. I

         13  do understand that there are five required findings

         14  that must be established in order to grant a

         15  variance, and I'm prepared to examine all issues

         16  that come before me to determine whether or not

         17  those five findings have been established, and then

         18  I'm going to use the law to guide me the best way I

         19  can in making a determination in voting.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Do you think

         21  that the zoning resolution and the building

         22  regulations are in place to, and the law that allows

         23  variances for hardships, do you think that it is the

         24  role of BSA to serve and protect the public and the

         25  people of the City of new York, or is it to consider
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          2  the rights of an individual builder or developer who

          3  may claim a financial or other hardship, some sort

          4  of individual right; how would you balance a

          5  conflict between the two?

          6                 MS. OTTLEY-BROWN: Well, I think that

          7  the role of BSA is to make a wise interpretation of

          8  the existing laws and policies that govern

          9  construction in this City, while also trying to

         10  balance competing interests.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Just for

         12  example, if a builder came and bought a piece of

         13  property and knew at the time that that property as

         14  it existed wouldn't allow for a certain type of

         15  development or couldn't have a sewer hook-up or any

         16  other type of thing that was known to that developer

         17  at that time, would you allow that developer or

         18  builder to then come to BSA and claim a hardship?

         19                 MS. OTTLEY-BROWN: Well, I really

         20  can't commit to an answer right now. I would rather

         21  look at all of the documentation that is brought

         22  before me on each particular case.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: And the

         24  example I give you there is knowledge of forethought

         25  on the applicant or proponent that certain condition
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          2  existed.

          3                 What happens all too often in Staten

          4  Island is people buy property, nothing changes,

          5  nothing is new and then they know that the way it

          6  sits or the way it's configured or the way the

          7  property sits next to and the uniqueness of every

          8  property, piece of real estate that exists, they

          9  know that there are certain conditions that are

         10  there, they go to BSA and say, well, I have a

         11  hardship now because I paid $500,000 for this

         12  property but I want to develop it and make a million

         13  and a half dollars and I want a variance. And all

         14  too often those variances are granted under the

         15  rubric of financial hardship.

         16                 Do you believe that someone who has

         17  knowledge before they purchase a piece of property

         18  has the right to then claim hardship based on no

         19  change of facts?

         20                 And I don't think it requires the

         21  hearing of a particular case. It's a very particular

         22  set of circumstances and facts.

         23                 MS. OTTLEY-BROWN: I think that every

         24  individual has the right to make a case themselves,

         25  and make a case concerning the specific issues that
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          2  appear before them. However, I think it's definitely

          3  the role of the BSA to weigh all of the issues to

          4  come before them. The issues of the developer, who

          5  they may think is pertinent and important, and also

          6  the issues of the development of the City and the

          7  affect of the surrounding community. I think there

          8  should be a sensitivity shown on all fronts.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: In the

         10  broader sense, sure. But you're not answering my

         11  question. My question is if an owner of land comes

         12  and claims economic hardship due to conditions that

         13  they knew about before they bought the piece of

         14  property, would you entertain that application?

         15                 MS. OTTLEY-BROWN: If an application

         16  is brought before me, I believe that I do have to

         17  examine and entertain it.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Would you

         19  grant an economic hardship in that case, even though

         20  a builder or developer knew about the condition

         21  before he or she bought the property?

         22                 MS. OTTLEY-BROWN: I cannot predict my

         23  answer to that at this point in time. I would have

         24  to examine all of the circumstances surrounding that

         25  particular case.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Council

          3  Member McMahon.

          4                 Are there any other questions from my

          5  colleagues?

          6                 Council Member Felder.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: No question, I

          8  just wanted to make a comment, that in the years

          9  that I have worked together with the applicant at

         10  Finance, I have found her to be extraordinarily

         11  sensitive, and the fact that she wasn't

         12  accommodating on certain occasions only proves her

         13  honesty in her job.

         14                 You know, we didn't always get what

         15  we wanted, but she was always fair, always examined

         16  the facts, and I think this City will be very

         17  fortunate.

         18                 Mike, you've got to keep your head

         19  straight. I'm trying to address the Chair. That's

         20  it.

         21                 I think the City will be very lucky

         22  to have her at the BSA.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Council

         24  Member Felder.

         25                 I'd like to have the final question
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          2  for Ms. Ottley-Brown, just having Council Member

          3  McMahon raise the issue of variance, I wanted to

          4  share with Ms. Ottley Brown the circumstances as I

          5  have seen them in North Brooklyn.

          6                 We have had various variances granted

          7  in which the essence of hardship has been

          8  self-created, and having seen such changes in our

          9  neighborhood to the point where we can certainly

         10  agree manufacturing and industrial has become

         11  seldom, as far as space for small business to

         12  occupy, that the role of the BSA is not to grant

         13  zoning changes to a neighborhood, but rather on a

         14  site-by-site issue.

         15                 And with the same token, you have

         16  eloquently mentioned that you have to weigh the

         17  sensitivity issues of how this site-by-site affects

         18  the neighborhood.

         19                 I'd like to have the assurances that

         20  when you will be serving as a Board member, that you

         21  will take into consideration, and I have highlighted

         22  this in my tenure with the BSA, the need for not

         23  just looking at the sensitivity issues concerning a

         24  neighborhood, nor just the site itself based on the

         25  findings. But that if you see a map, and if you

                                                            20

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  start mapping out how many variance on one block,

          3  clearly there is an indication that the system is

          4  being used and abused, and therefore variances to

          5  continue forward should be halted and investigations

          6  on behalf of the BSA or perhaps any other entity, as

          7  far as the City is concerned, should enter into

          8  finding out what is occurring.

          9                 I know that in the past I have had

         10  this conversation and our industrial park had been

         11  chipped away. Those conversations were taken to high

         12  levels of making sure that the Chair we visit,

         13  making certain that these zones were not going to

         14  continue to receive variances on a site-by-site

         15  basis, but they were going to now begin to flag

         16  where variances have been granted, moving forward

         17  where applications are being brought to the BSA,

         18  then make some determinations as to whether or not

         19  there is a collaborative effort amongst property

         20  owners.

         21                 And, so, this is not for you to

         22  comment. If you do wish to comment, I welcome you

         23  to, but I need to know that I would share my

         24  circumstance, as far as how the BSA has transformed

         25  our neighborhood, and it has not been a good
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          2  experience, and, therefore, I guess one of the

          3  questions could be asked when you seek to serve in

          4  the Board, will you go and visit where these sites

          5  are. Nothing precludes you from not going. And, so,

          6  will that be a common practice for you as a

          7  potential member?

          8                 MS. OTTLEY-BROWN: Absolutely it would

          9  be a common practice for me.

         10                 In my tenure at Department of

         11  Finance, I've done quite a bit of field work, even

         12  as the Assistant Commissioner. So, I'm familiar with

         13  traveling throughout the City and I have no problem

         14  traveling to different neighborhoods to look at it.

         15                 I understand the issues that you're

         16  stating and the need for an analysis on a grand

         17  scale, as well as on a minute scale, and I intend to

         18  do both.

         19                 I have a very strong analytical

         20  background that will serve me well.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: I appreciate your

         22  eloquent and thought out comment, because that's

         23  exactly the micro and macro level of analyzing

         24  certain decisions that we are looking for in this

         25  City of New York.
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          2                 Seeing no further questions for Ms.

          3  Ottley-Brown, I'd like to give her the opportunity

          4  to resume her role.

          5                 I understand that she continues to

          6  work for the Department of finance, and she has a

          7  schedule to continue for today. But if you choose to

          8  stay, we welcome you to as well. Thank you, Ms.

          9  Ottley Brown.

         10                 Moving forward, I'd like to welcome

         11  Ms. Hinckson. Will you please raise your right hand

         12  and be sworn in.

         13                 MS. BUTLER: Will you swear to tell

         14  the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the

         15  truth?

         16                 MS. HINKSON: I do.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Ms.

         18  Hinkson. I'd like to open the line of questioning

         19  for my colleagues. Do I have anyone -- oh, I

         20  apologize, Ms. Hinkson, your opening statement, if

         21  you have one prepared now is the time to read it

         22  into the record. Thank you.

         23                 MS. HINKSON: Okay. Thank you.

         24                 Good afternoon, Chairperson Reyna,

         25  Honorable members of the Rules, Privileges and
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          2  Elections Committee. My name is Susan Hinkson, and

          3  I'd like to thank you for this opportunity to

          4  address you this afternoon, as well as to express my

          5  gratitude for being nominated to the Board of

          6  Standards and Appeals.

          7                 Serving on the Board of Standards and

          8  Appeals is truly a dream come true for me. As a

          9  lifelong resident of the Bronx, born in Bronx

         10  Lebanon Hospital, starting out in life in the shadow

         11  of Yankee Stadium, on East 161st Street, brought up

         12  in a family that believed that giving back to the

         13  community was of paramount importance, where the

         14  honor of public service was discussed and debated at

         15  the dinner table, along with tales of my father's

         16  exploits in making law as a young ADA in the Bronx

         17  County Court, and my mother as the first program

         18  director of the Bronx Council on the Arts.

         19                 As time went on, some of you may know

         20  that eventually my father was elected to the bench

         21  of the Supreme Court in Bronx County, and my mother,

         22  God rest her soul, was a fixture in the Riverdale

         23  Kingsbridge Community on CB 8 for well over a

         24  decade.

         25                 I say all of this not only to pay
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          2  tribute to parents that passed on, nurtured and

          3  cultivated me in a sense of responsibility to the

          4  community, but also to show that one was expected to

          5  give back more than what one received.

          6                 Graduating from Pratt Institute in

          7  Brooklyn in 1981 with a bachelor of architecture,

          8  and then working for several small architectural

          9  firms as a designer and project manager, I received

         10  my license to practice architecture in 1990,

         11  continuing to design commercial structures,

         12  interiors, and supervise construction, I landed a

         13  job as Capital Project Manager with the New York

         14  City Department of Cultural Affairs, where I managed

         15  the capital budget process and the design

         16  procurement and construction process for several of

         17  the City-owned cultural institutions, including El

         18  Museo Del Barrio, the Public Theatre, the Brooklyn

         19  Museum, Sailors Snug Harbor, and the Staten Island

         20  Institute of Arts and Sciences.

         21                 In 1998, after four years of night

         22  school, I graduated from New York Law School with a

         23  JD, and in 1999 I left cultural affairs to become

         24  Deputy Commissioner of Planning and Community

         25  Development for Sullivan County New York, where I
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          2  implemented Town Center and Main Street

          3  Redevelopment Programs, as well as revolving

          4  construction loan programs.

          5                 I returned to New York City in 2001,

          6  where I managed construction for a variety of

          7  clients, and in September of 2001, I found myself at

          8  the Port Authority of New York and New Jersey at the

          9  World Trade Center.

         10                 In 2002, Commissioner Lancaster hired

         11  me to become the Deputy Borough Commissioner in

         12  Brooklyn. In April of 2003, I was named Acting

         13  Borough Commissioner, and in October of that same

         14  year, I was named the Borough Commissioner.

         15                 In February of 2006, I was named

         16  Borough Commissioner of Staten Island, where I

         17  currently am today.

         18                 I am overwhelmed by the expressions

         19  of support that I have received, and the task of

         20  Borough Commissioner is not easy.

         21                 We at DOB are charged with enforcing

         22  the zoning resolution and the New York City Building

         23  Code. Over the past four years I have garnered a

         24  great deal of experience in balancing the several

         25  and disparate viewpoints of the many stakeholders.
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          2                 Clearly, there are many sides to any

          3  given issue, but through it all is the law, the

          4  reality of the zoning resolution and the Building

          5  Code.

          6                 As Borough Commissioner, the reality

          7  of the law may mean making decisions that perhaps

          8  may be at that time unpopular, but decisions

          9  nonetheless that keep the law firmly in mind.

         10                 Again, I want to thank the City

         11  Council for this opportunity. I feel my experience

         12  makes me qualified for this position. And if there

         13  are any questions, I would be pleased to answer them

         14  now.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you very

         16  much, Ms. Hinkson. I'd like to call on Council

         17  Member Oddo.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you very

         19  much. Thank you very much, Madam Chair.

         20                 I think by now the feud I had with

         21  the Department of Buildings is sort of folklore on

         22  this building, and that relationship has changed

         23  over the last year somewhat, and it really began to

         24  change for the better when Ms. Hinkson was appointed

         25  to the position of Borough Commissioner. In fact,
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          2  depending on who you talk to, some would tell you

          3  that I am responsible or to blame for Ms. Hinkson

          4  having to come to Staten Island.

          5                 I just want to offer to my colleagues

          6  a little taste of the relationship that we were able

          7  to establish. Ms. Hinkson has been more responsive

          8  to my office in the last six months than all of our

          9  predecessors combined.

         10                 This is a Borough Commissioner who

         11  immediately reached out to us, e-mailed my staff,

         12  stopped by my office. She was a breath of fresh air

         13  and she completely changed my perspective on this

         14  Department.

         15                 And I just want to say to Ms.

         16  Hinkson, following up on Council Member McMahon's

         17  very valid point, unless and until there is a Staten

         18  Islander sitting alongside of you at the BSA, you

         19  are the closest we have to represent our values and

         20  sensibilities.

         21                 You know, working out there for

         22  several months is not tantamount to being a Staten

         23  Islander, but until we're successful in putting

         24  someone on the Board who has lived and breathed

         25  Staten Island, you're the closest thing we have, and
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          2  I would just ask that when you do get approved by

          3  this Committee and do sit, please don't forget the

          4  struggles that we've shared with you, Councilman

          5  McMahon, Council Member Lanza and I, these last six

          6  months, because most of the problems are the same.

          7  They may come in a little bit of a different package

          8  and new responsibilities, but we're going to need

          9  your help still. And I thank you for your help in

         10  the past, and I thank you, Madam Chair, for your

         11  indulgence.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Absolutely,

         13  Council Member.

         14                 We have been joined by other

         15  colleagues and I'd like to take the time to

         16  introduce them.

         17                 Council Member Garodnick from

         18  Manhattan. Council Member Recchia from Brooklyn.

         19  Council Member James from Brooklyn. Council Member

         20  Gallagher from Queens. Council Member Clarke from

         21  Brooklyn, and Council Member Jackson from Manhattan.

         22                 I have McMahon, Fidler, and Bill

         23  DeBlasio, unless there are other.

         24                 Council Member McMahon.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you,
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          2  Madam Chairwoman. Thank you very much for your great

          3  leadership on this Committee and the great work

          4  you've done on today's agenda.

          5                 Ms. Hinckson, I want to echo -- it's

          6  not rare that when Jimmy speaks I say me too. It

          7  certainly has been a pleasure working with you, and

          8  I'm very sorry to see you leave Staten Island, and

          9  you certainly have been one of the more responsive

         10  City officials that we've dealt with and it's not

         11  easy.

         12                 I do want to stress what Council

         13  Member Oddo said. You are our adopted Staten Island

         14  representative, until such time as a vacancy is

         15  filled with someone from Staten Island.

         16                 I would like to just follow-up real

         17  quickly with the questions that I was asking Ms.

         18  Ottley-Brown; and that is, when you sit on BSA, and

         19  you receive that application that says from someone

         20  I bought this property six months ago and I know

         21  have a financial hardship to do with it what I want

         22  to do, not with what the Building Code and the

         23  zoning resolutions say I can do with it; how do you

         24  feel about that type of allocation?

         25                 MS. HINKSON: Well, I think I see that

                                                            30

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  sort of application now in what I do as a Borough

          3  Commissioner. As a Commissioner on the Board of

          4  Standards and Appeals, you really are charged to

          5  look at everything as an individual and precise

          6  package project.

          7                 And I think that it's a

          8  consideration, especially if someone is claiming a

          9  hardship that we do consider why they have the

         10  hardship.

         11                 But I also think that because you are

         12  charged with looking at the entire package, you take

         13  that into consideration along with other factors.

         14  But indeed, I think that you do have to see why a

         15  person is in such a hardship.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I will just

         17  briefly, Madam Chairperson, I know time is short,

         18  but I mean, I could understand that answer in the

         19  philosophy to say you look at it if someone owns a

         20  piece of property an over the years maybe it's

         21  become landlocked, or things have happened around

         22  it, but if someone goes and buys a piece of property

         23  six months ago and goes to the Building Department

         24  and City Planning and is told that they can't do

         25  what they want to do and they knew that when they
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          2  were buying it, how could that constitute a

          3  financial hardship?

          4                 I'm not saying they can't do anything

          5  with the property, but all too often, and you know

          6  this, people come and say, well, the zoning

          7  resolution allows me to build two two-families, but

          8  I want to build eight because otherwise I have a

          9  financial hardship, is that a tenable -- should the

         10  City countenance that and allow that type of

         11  argument?

         12                 MS. HINKSON: Well, it depends on, I

         13  guess the threshold that you use to establish what a

         14  hardship is. Not being on the Board just yet, I'm

         15  not familiar with how the Board would assess it.

         16                 But I think you probably have to look

         17  at how you look at a hardship, but, again, you also

         18  have to take that into consideration with the other

         19  factors. And, yes, if it's a self-made hardship,

         20  that I think is taken into consideration with

         21  everything else. But if something is put before you,

         22  you have to look at it as an individual issue and

         23  project and weigh all of the factors that go into

         24  it.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you,
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          2  Ms. Hinkson. And I will just ask you to remember to

          3  be mindful that most people who watched us from a

          4  community activist position, and I'm sure your late

          5  mother would have felt the same way, variances are

          6  granted all too often. It should be the exception

          7  and not the norm, and I hope that you'll be mindful

          8  of that. Thank you, Madam Chairwoman.

          9                 MS. HINKSON: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Council

         11  Member McMahon. And I'd like to echo and reinforce

         12  what Council Member McMahon has mentioned. I had

         13  significantly tried to express to Ms. Ottley-Brown

         14  before she left how, in my area of North Brooklyn,

         15  significant variances to the point where, you know,

         16  it raised to the level of suspicion one particular

         17  block, and this happened in various blocks, but to

         18  the point where so many were granted you changed

         19  conformity. And that needs to be analyzed. And not

         20  just analyzed on any other's shoulders,

         21  responsibility, but the BSA. If they'd like to bring

         22  in other departments, by all means, but it is the

         23  responsibility of the BSA to act appropriately and

         24  ask all the appropriate questions when perhaps there

         25  is an indication that there is self-created
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          2  hardship.

          3                 I'd like to move on and ask Council

          4  Member Fidler.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you,

          6  Madam Chairwoman.

          7                 I want to begin with a brief comment

          8  and an apology to Ms. Hinkson -- I'm going to -- for

          9  what's about to ensue. I am not undmindful of the

         10  fact that the questions I have to ask you are tough

         11  and difficult, and that, you know, you're a

         12  thinking, feeling human being. This is very, very

         13  tough for me to do, but quite frankly, I think there

         14  are questions of extraordinary moral integrity

         15  involved here that need to be asked of you, and I

         16  apologize to my colleagues and I ask their

         17  indulgence, and I want to point out that by the time

         18  I had the opportunity to call the members of the

         19  Rules Committee here yesterday on the phone, I tried

         20  to reach each and every one of you, to ask you to

         21  keep an open mind and not let this appointment go

         22  through in business as usual in this Council. You

         23  have gotten as many as four different phone calls

         24  lobbying you to support this nominee before you

         25  heard the facts and the evidence and I hope that as
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          2  you sit here and listen to the questions that are

          3  asked and the answers that are given, that you take

          4  the responsibility of advice and consent very much

          5  to heart and recognize what some of our colleagues

          6  have already said, that BSA has become one of the

          7  most important agencies in the City of New York to

          8  our communities, that it is in fact the people's

          9  administrative tribunal where we are supposed to

         10  have an equal footing with developers and architects

         11  who are trying to do things often in our communities

         12  that we oppose and that, therefore, the integrity of

         13  this Board has to be sacrosanct. And so, I hope that

         14  you'll indulge what is probably longer questioning

         15  than I usually have, you'll have an opening mind in

         16  listening to it. I think you know that in the four

         17  and a half years that I've been here I don't

         18  generally come here and howl at the moon, but there

         19  is something going on here that you all need to be

         20  aware of.

         21                 Ms. Hinkson, do you know the name

         22  Sheldon Lobell?

         23                 MS. HINKSON: Yes, I do.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And when was

         25  the first time you had the opportunity to know Mr.
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          2  Lobell?

          3                 MS. HINKSON: Probably about maybe

          4  three and a half years ago, when I was in Brooklyn

          5  as a Deputy.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Can you tell

          7  us what Mr. Lobell does for a living?

          8                 MS. HINKSON: He has a law firm that I

          9  guess deals with zoning and code issues in the City

         10  of New York.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And he's an

         12  architect; am I correct?

         13                 MS. HINKSON: Or P.E. I'm not sure.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Okay.

         15                 And prior to your being nominated by

         16  the Mayor for this position, did you have any

         17  discussions with Mr. Lobell about this appointment?

         18                 MS. HINKSON: It's interesting you

         19  should bring that up. About two years ago now Mr.

         20  Lobell called me and expressed that he and his

         21  organization that he represented was going to

         22  support me in I guess a bid for a seat on the Board

         23  of Standards and Appeals. That was about two years

         24  ago in '04, and things went along, and I was not

         25  contacted or anything. It just kind of went by the
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          2  wayside.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: So, that was

          4  the first time that the subject of your being

          5  appointed to the Board of Standards and Appeals came

          6  up to you?

          7                 MS. HINKSON: Yes, it did.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And you

          9  expressed to him, as you testified with your opening

         10  statement, that it would be your dream come true, I

         11  would imagine, right?

         12                 MS. HINKSON: Well, it was interesting

         13  because I hadn't thought about it and I hadn't asked

         14  him for anything, and he had sent off this letter

         15  and basically had told me afterwards. And, you know,

         16  there was nothing I could really do about that. But

         17  I --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Well, what did

         19  you tell him if you were interested in being a

         20  member of the Board of Standards and Appeals?

         21                 MS. HINKSON: I said that's a very

         22  interesting and exciting possibility.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Let's not

         24  parse words. An interesting and exciting possibility

         25  is a nice way of saying, yeah, I'd like to be a
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          2  member of the Board of Standards and Appeals, right?

          3                 MS. HINKSON: It's an interesting and

          4  exciting possibility for me, yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Okay. I think

          6  if I had asked someone a question like that, I would

          7  have interpreted that answer as being yes. And

          8  ultimately Mr. Lobell recommended you to the Mayor

          9  for this appointment; is that correct?

         10                 MS. HINKSON: He wrote a letter, and

         11  actually I don't even have a copy of the letter, but

         12  I came to find out just actually quite recently that

         13  although I was under the impression that I guess the

         14  letter had longevity, evidently it did not because I

         15  was told Mr. Lobell no longer was supporting me and

         16  actually was supporting someone else in this

         17  go-around.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Yet, in your

         19  answers to this Committee's written questions, when

         20  you were asked who recommended you for this position

         21  you mentioned two names, Senator Goldin, and Mr.

         22  Lobell; is that not accurate.

         23                 MS. HINKSON: And at the time that I

         24  answered those questions, that was my understanding,

         25  yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: So, when

          3  someone recommends you for a position, you could say

          4  that they played some role, perhaps even an

          5  instrumental or a key role, in your getting that

          6  position; is that a fair statement?

          7                 MS. HINKSON: I do not know what the

          8  process is in terms of people, you know, looking at

          9  recommendations. I can only tell you that a letter

         10  was sent, and for whatever it's worth, it was sent.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Well, I don't

         12  know, generally when someone asks if I want a

         13  position, I tell them yes, and then they recommend

         14  me for it. I usually say thank you when I get it.

         15                 So, I would say that it's pretty fair

         16  to say that he played a significant role in your

         17  nomination for the Board of Standards and Appeals.

         18                 Have you ever attended a hearing

         19  session of the Board of Standards and Appeals?

         20                 MS. HINKSON: No, I have not.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: You have not?

         22  Okay.

         23                 Well, you know, I have. I've attended

         24  many of them and to my recollection, at each and

         25  every one Mr. Lobell is there representing somebody.
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          2                 Would you be surprised to know that

          3  on the most recent Board of Standards and Appeals

          4  calendar, of the 24 matters pending before the Board

          5  of Standards and Appeals for something other than a

          6  decision, that Mr. Lobell was the listed

          7  representative on five of them?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Madam Chair,

          9  could I intervene in this line of questioning?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I would like

         11  the opportunity, Councilman, to finish my

         12  questioning.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: I would like

         14  to see a copy of this calendar.

         15                 Are you going to say that he's on

         16  every one?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: I want a copy

         19  of this calendar.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I would ask

         21  the Rules Committee staff that gave me the calendar

         22  to present it here and distribute it to Council

         23  Member Recchia. Because I don't think Council Member

         24  Recchia thinks I'm making it up.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: No. I would
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          2  just like to see that.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Could we just have

          4  some order in this room amongst members of this

          5  Committee and others?

          6                 I believe Council Member Fidler had a

          7  line of questioning. If there is an item a member

          8  would like to see or have exposure to a record,

          9  please ask Chuck Davis or Barbara Butler, who will

         10  then be very happy to accommodate you.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Madam Chair, I

         12  believe, for the record, Mr. Davis has shown Council

         13  Member Recchia the calendar. And in fact, I'd like

         14  to state for the record that I certainly ask the

         15  Committee staff, since it is my anecdotal experience

         16  that Mr. Lobell, who I have absolutely no problems

         17  with, he is a very professional, responsible person,

         18  I have no beef with Mr. Lobell, that Mr. Lobell is

         19  the single, most active practitioner before the

         20  Board of Standards and Appeals in the City of New

         21  York. So, I ask the Committee to look into it, and

         22  in fact, they came back not with a year's worth of

         23  calendars, but just the last one which showed that

         24  he represented approximately 20 percent of the

         25  applicants before the Board on that particular day,
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          2  and that is consistent with my experience, having

          3  attended about a half a dozen BSA hearings in the

          4  last four years.

          5                 So, I go back to my question, Ms.

          6  Hinkson. Would it surprise you to find out that Mr.

          7  Lobell is so active in practicing before the

          8  tribunal to which you seek a position?

          9                 MS. HINKSON: I do not know how many

         10  cases he has. It never came up for me to consider,

         11  no.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I would ask

         13  you, Ma'am, would you recuse yourself from matters

         14  in which Mr. Lobell appears before Standards and

         15  Appeals?

         16                 MS. HINKSON: Well, I should think

         17  that there's no real connection between Mr. Lobell

         18  and I, considering I guess that he has retracted his

         19  letter, or has recommended somebody else. But

         20  certainly I would treat him like I would treat

         21  anybody else that I have had dealings with in terms

         22  of projects that have come before me, that if I had

         23  direct dealings in a particular project, as the

         24  Borough Commissioner of either Brooklyn or Staten

         25  Island, I would certainly recuse myself, considering
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          2  I was probably the one that sent it to the Board.

          3                 As far as anything else is concerned,

          4  I should think that I would have to take a look at

          5  it and see if I had had any substantive input into

          6  it prior to going to the Board.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Are you

          8  telling me that Mr. Lobell has written a letter

          9  saying I didn't mean it. I don't think Susan Hinkson

         10  should be on the Board of Standards and Appeals?

         11                 MS. HINKSON: I don't know what Mr.

         12  Lobell did. I'm only telling you what I've --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: You just

         14  testified under oath that he's retracted the letter.

         15  I want to know the basis for that statement.

         16                 MS. HINKSON: I was told that he has

         17  recommended somebody else.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: But there are

         19  five members of Board of Standards and Appeals.

         20                 MS. HINKSON: I can only tell you what

         21  I know, and it's not a lot.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: So then he

         23  hasn't retracted the letter to the best of your

         24  knowledge. He has recommended an additional

         25  applicant for the Board of Standards and Appeals.
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          2  But let's be careful, all right? He has not

          3  retracted the letter to the best of your knowledge;

          4  is that correct?

          5                 MS. HINKSON: I don't know what he's

          6  done. I don't know what he's done.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: So then the

          8  answer is to the best of your knowledge, he has not

          9  retracted the letter. So, therefore, Mr. Lobell, who

         10  is the single, most active practitioner on this

         11  Board, who recommended you for a job that you said

         12  is going to be a dream come true, you don't feel

         13  that there is an appearance of impropriety for you

         14  to sit on his cases as a member of this

         15  administrative tribunal; is that accurate?

         16                 MS. HINKSON: I have not, and can't

         17  control, who supports me.

         18                 I can say that I was aware of one

         19  letter that he wrote two years ago, and I am now

         20  aware that he has supported someone else. That's all

         21  I can say.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Ms. Hinkson,

         23  you know, repeating it doesn't answer the question.

         24                 I mean, you were acutely aware of his

         25  recommendation for you, because in your written
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          2  response to this Committee, you mentioned the two

          3  people who recommended you for this dream come true,

          4  Senator Goldin and Sheldon Lobell.

          5                 So, I want to understand how I can

          6  feel that my community is going to be represented on

          7  a fair, honest and level playing field before the

          8  Board of Standards and Appeals if you're sitting on

          9  that side of the table and Sheldon Lobell is on the

         10  other side.

         11                 MS. HINKSON: I mentioned Mr. Lobell

         12  and Mr. Goldin because I was aware of letters that

         13  they had written. That's why I mentioned them.

         14                 I do not feel that I have an inherent

         15  conflict with Mr. Lobell. I have on occasion dealt

         16  with him as a Borough Commissioner and have felt

         17  that I have been fair and equitable, and probably

         18  have said no to him far more than I probably ever

         19  said yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I'm just

         21  curious. At any time --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Madam Chair?

         23  Madam Chair, point of clarification.

         24                 Should the witness not have counsel,

         25  administrative counsel sitting next to her to give
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          2  her advice, since a lot of these questions, this

          3  line of questioning raises legal issues?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Council

          5  Member James.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And I believe

          7  she needs advice of counsel.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: And I've just

          9  received word that we need to pause this line of

         10  questioning. So, I'd like the members to remain in

         11  this room, as I take a five-minute break to consult

         12  with Counsel for this Committee. And I apologize for

         13  further delay. Hold on one second.

         14                 (Recess taken.)

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: This Committee

         16  will resume. I believe Council Member Fidler was in

         17  the middle of a question. I'd like to ask Council

         18  Member Fidler to please ask your question. When you

         19  receive an answer, if you can continue moving to the

         20  next question. I believe we've heard three times the

         21  same question.

         22                 In addition to that, I'd like to ask

         23  Ms. Hinkson if you'd like to have a representative

         24  of the Mayor's Counsel sitting next to you, you may

         25  choose to do so.
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          2                 MS. HINKSON: Yes, I would like to

          3  have Anthony Crowell, and I also would like to have

          4  my own private attorney with me, as well, Gunther

          5  Kilsch.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: For the record,

          7  you can identify yourselves onto the mike.

          8                 I'd like to ask our colleagues to

          9  maintain order, please.

         10                 MR. CROWELL: Hi. My name is Anthony

         11  Crowell. I'm Counsel to Mayor Bloomberg, and I work

         12  with the Appointments Committee for the Mayor's

         13  Office, as well.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you.

         15                 MR. KILSCH: I am Gunther H. Kilsch,

         16  K-i-l-s-c-h, I'm an attorney licensed in the State

         17  of New York. I have an office at 123 William Street,

         18  24th floor, and I am of counsel to the firm of

         19  Macaloon and Friedman, P.C.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you very

         21  much, sir.

         22                 Council Member Fidler.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you,

         24  Madam Chairwoman.

         25                 You know, the fact that I've asked
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          2  the question more than once doesn't mean it was

          3  answered. So, I just want to point out that I still

          4  believe that there is a question hanging as to

          5  whether or not Ms. Hinkson believes that given the

          6  conduct of Mr. Lobell in this matter, that she

          7  should not be offering, that she will recuse herself

          8  on matters that he appears before the Board, and I'm

          9  judging that I'm not going to get a different answer

         10  than the one I got; is that correct?

         11                 MS. HINKSON: I believe I've answered

         12  your question, yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Okay. Let's

         14  move on to another topic. Could you tell us quick

         15  what you believe the responsibilities and the job

         16  description of the Brooklyn Borough Commissioner for

         17  the Department of Buildings is?

         18                 MS. HINKSON: The Brooklyn Borough

         19  Commissioner is responsible for the interpretation,

         20  the Borough Interpretation of the zoning resolution,

         21  the Building Code, for the daily operation of the

         22  office, and to be the face of the Building

         23  Department in that Borough.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Okay.

         25                 What would your relationship be in
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          2  terms of your job responsibility with the City

          3  Buildings Commissioner?

          4                 MS. HINKSON: Ms. Lancaster would be

          5  my boss.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I mean, do you

          7  consult with her on a regular basis?

          8                 MS. HINKSON: We have meetings, the

          9  five Borough Commissioners have meetings and she

         10  will attend them. She has communication with us.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I mean, do you

         12  speak with her directly about issues and concerns

         13  and things that happen in the Borough of Brooklyn

         14  that relate to the Department of Buildings.

         15                 MS. HINKSON: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Okay.

         17                 What role does your office play when

         18  there is a serious accident on a construction site

         19  in Brooklyn?

         20                 MS. HINKSON: Well, for any borough,

         21  not just for Brooklyn, but for any borough, the

         22  borough response typically is the first response to

         23  an incident. It will depend on how the incident is

         24  reported to the Borough.

         25                 For instance, if an incident is
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          2  reported to the centralized system through 3-1-1,

          3  and it may go to a specialized unit first, but for

          4  all intents and purposes, the Borough is typically

          5  the first responder.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And what

          7  happens after that? After the first response?

          8                 MS. HINKSON: An inspector will go to

          9  the site and assess what is needed, call back to the

         10  Borough and request additional resources, if needed.

         11  Will coordinate with myself and/or his superior in

         12  getting those resources to the site.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: I'm sorry, I hear

         14  cell phones. If we could turn off cell phones, put

         15  them on vibrate or remove them from your body.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: So, in the

         17  event a serious accident occurs on a job site in

         18  Brooklyn, after that initial response, your office

         19  would be responsible for whatever necessary

         20  follow-up there is; am I understanding that

         21  correctly?

         22                 MS. HINKSON: The Borough Office would

         23  be probably the point of contact and coordination

         24  with any other unit that the Department has

         25  allocated to that problem.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Can you tell

          3  us what the BEST team is?

          4                 MS. HINKSON: BEST Squad.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: BEST Squad,

          6  okay. Other than the Mets.

          7                 MS. HINKSON: The BEST Squad. Don't

          8  ask me what B-E-S-T stands for, because I can never

          9  remember. But --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Probably

         11  Borough Enforcement Safety Taskforce, would be my

         12  best guess.

         13                 MS. HINKSON: You are very good. You

         14  are very good.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Buildings

         16  Enforcement Safety Taskforce.

         17                 MS. HINKSON: The BEST Squad would

         18  respond to an issue of let's say an excavation that

         19  has fallen in or something has occurred in terms of

         20  an accident on a high-rise where there would be a

         21  safety issue sort of thing.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And would you

         23  have any role on the follow-up with the BEST Squad,

         24  if a serious construction accident happened in

         25  Brooklyn?
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          2                 MS. HINKSON: Possibly. It would

          3  really depend on the situation and how BEST was

          4  handling it and if they needed additional resources.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Council Member, we

          6  have six more colleagues. I just want to make sure

          7  that your questioning in relation to BEST is to the

          8  final question.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I'm going to

         10  allow Councilman DeBlasio to pick up on the BEST

         11  Squad at this point. I just wanted to understand a

         12  couple of things, because it all kind of flows.

         13                 Again, as it relates to the

         14  responsibilities of the Borough Buildings

         15  Commissioner, there is some interagency cooperation,

         16  right? You work from time to time with DEP and City

         17  Planning and other agencies like that; would that be

         18  accurate?

         19                 MS. HINKSON: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And in the

         21  case of a proposed major development, you know, a

         22  big project, would it be unusual for Buildings

         23  Department Brooklyn Office, maybe not yourself

         24  personally, but your office to be participating in

         25  an intergovernmental meeting on that project?
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          2                 MS. HINKSON: On a particular project?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Yes.

          4                 MS. HINKSON: I doubt it. You'd have

          5  to be kind of specific. I mean, we meet with other

          6  agencies on sort of a lot of issues, so you know --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Well, I'll use

          8  one of Council Member James's favorite examples. On

          9  the Atlantic Yards Project, which is certainly a

         10  major development project that impacts in many

         11  different ways in Brooklyn, have there been any

         12  meetings that buildings and DEP and City Planning

         13  and maybe other agencies have been involved at to

         14  discuss the project and the course of the project

         15  and governmental involvement in the project?

         16                 MS. HINKSON: There may have been. I

         17  was not involved in a meeting of that nature.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Has the

         19  Borough Office been involved in that?

         20                 MS. HINKSON: During my tenure? I

         21  don't think so. I can't answer for the past eight

         22  months. I haven't been there in eight months.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: All right. But

         24  during your period of time at Department of

         25  Buildings in Brooklyn, there certainly would have
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          2  been meetings to discuss projects in which more than

          3  one City agency was involved. That wouldn't be

          4  extraordinary. You wouldn't say, no, no, Councilman,

          5  that never happens, it couldn't happen.

          6                 MS. HINKSON: Let me narrow it down

          7  for you, so that you don't have to keep going around

          8  the bush.

          9                 When I was Borough Commissioner in

         10  Brooklyn, I would have a monthly meeting with Regina

         11  Meyer of City Planning, and our staffs would discuss

         12  several different issues, particularly issues in

         13  terms of downzoning, where the enforcement of which

         14  would mean that I would have to do something.

         15                 So, we would meet to discuss what,

         16  when, how and that sort of stuff, operational

         17  issues.

         18                 As far as other agencies are

         19  concerned, in Brooklyn I did not necessarily meet

         20  regularly with other agencies, you know, like DEP or

         21  DOT. I had relationships with the Borough

         22  Commissioners, where I could call and pick up the

         23  phone, but I would not, not a specific type of

         24  meeting.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: So, these
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          2  meetings that you have on a monthly basis with

          3  Regina Meyer from the Brooklyn City Planning Office,

          4  do they ever discuss in part development projects

          5  that are coming down the pike?

          6                 MS. HINKSON: Yes. Sometimes, yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: So that

          8  wouldn't be unusual?

          9                 MS. HINKSON: Not necessarily.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Okay.

         11                 Have you ever heard of an entity

         12  known as Vornado Realty, or Vornado Realty Trust?

         13                 MS. HINKSON: I think they're a real

         14  estate company in -- yes. I mean, they're a real

         15  estate company.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Well, I mean,

         17  are you familiar with the company, or are you just

         18  guessing the name realty trust, that they're a

         19  realty company?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Madam Chair, I

         21  thought we were concluding?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: I apologize.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: That's okay.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Council Member

         25  Fidler.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I asked the

          3  question.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Can Ms. Hinkson

          5  answer the next question and we'll move on to the

          6  next question?

          7                 MS. HINKSON: I know the name, yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: So, you're

          9  familiar with the company.

         10                 When did you first become familiar

         11  with the company?

         12                 MS. HINKSON: I'm not familiar with

         13  the company in the sense of knowing about them. I

         14  just know the name. I mean, I know the name.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Are you

         16  familiar with Kings Plaza?

         17                 MS. HINKSON: Sure. It's in Brooklyn.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And are you

         19  familiar --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Madam Chair, we

         21  have six or seven other --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Excuse me.

         23  I'll ask Council Member James not to be shouting out

         24  while I'm questioning. I give her that courtesy.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Can we move on

          4  with another questioner? We've got eight other

          5  members.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Council Member

          7  James.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Council Member

          9  James is a member of the Committee. She doesn't need

         10  to tolerate this if she doesn't want to hear it.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Council Member

         12  Fidler.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: All right?

         14                 Yes, Ma'am.

         15                 Other than as a shopping plaza, are

         16  you familiar with Kings Plaza in any context of your

         17  work as Commissioner of the Brooklyn Department of

         18  Buildings?

         19                 MS. HINKSON: There are a couple of

         20  issues that came before me, and I believe that you

         21  also sent me a couple pieces of correspondence on

         22  Kings Plaza.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Probably more

         24  than a couple. Do you know what those issues were?

         25  Could you tell us if any of them related to the
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          2  development of the land that Vernado Realty Trust

          3  owns next to Kings Plaza?

          4                 MS. HINKSON: The only issues that I

          5  dealt with in terms of Kings Plaza, I believe you

          6  asked our office to provide you with some

          7  information, some generation information, and to the

          8  best of my recollection, the only thing that I had

          9  dealings with Kings Plaza was an issue of

         10  remediation of soil, and they asked me a question

         11  concerning that.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And at this

         13  time, Madam Chair, I would ask that the witness be

         14  given the papers that the Sergeant-At-Arms has

         15  handed out. I'd like to question her about.

         16                 MR. KILSCH: Madam Chair, while that's

         17  going on, can I clarify my role here? Because I

         18  don't understand whether under your procedures I'm

         19  permitted to actively interject. Because I find the

         20  approach here somewhat disquieting, and I do not

         21  like to sit here without the opportunity to protect

         22  my client from this kind of approach.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: And I will seek

         24  clarification for you. One second.

         25                 I'd like to ask Council Member Fidler

                                                            58

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  to pause for a few seconds.

          3                 I've requested the Rules Book.

          4  Council Member James, could you please refrain from

          5  commenting?

          6                 Counsel, there is nothing in the

          7  Rules Book to this Committee that guides our

          8  Committee and I as Chair that would not allow you to

          9  consult Ms. Hinkson as your client.

         10                 In addition to that, I would believe

         11  to interpret our Rules Book that I have the

         12  discretion to allow you to do so. And, so, I will

         13  grant that, as long as it will not occur to the

         14  point where we're abusing the process of allowing

         15  you to sit next to her.

         16                 Therefore --

         17                 MR. KILSCH: I was thinking more,

         18  Madam Chairman, of the role of a lawyer in making

         19  objections to the form of questions and drawing the

         20  conclusions that the gentleman who is questioning

         21  has asked people to draw.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: You can address

         23  your client, Ms. Hinkson, but not the Committee.

         24                 MR. KILSCH: Okay.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: May I proceed?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Yes, sir.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you.

          5                 Has Ms. Hinkson been given a copy --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Ms. Hinkson, do

          7  you have a copy of this document?

          8                 MS. HINKSON: Yes, I do.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Okay.

         11                 You just testified that my office has

         12  attempted --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Madam Chair, we

         14  don't have a copy.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Well, it

         16  should have been distributed to everyone on Rules.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: If you can have

         18  the Sergeant-At-Arms distribute it, I would

         19  appreciate it.

         20                 MR. CROWELL: You just gave her a

         21  packet of 15 single-spaced pages and gave her two

         22  minutes to read it. I think we need a little more

         23  time, please.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Well, I would

         25  be more than willing to put this over for two weeks,

                                                            60

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  sir.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Can we have some

          4  order in this room?

          5                 Does every member of this Committee

          6  and those of this body who are not part of this

          7  Committee have a copy of the document we are

          8  referring to?

          9                 And if you do not have one, raise

         10  your hand and we will accommodate a copy for you.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Madam Chair,

         12  the questions aren't going to be all that difficult

         13  on the documents.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: It is not about

         15  difficulty.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I understand.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: So can we refrain

         18  from commenting?

         19                 You are not next, Council Member

         20  Recchia.

         21                 Point of clarification?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Point of

         23  clarification.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Okay.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I think that
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          2  the question is on these documents does it pertain

          3  to her fitness and ability to serve in this

          4  particular position, and does any of these documents

          5  relate to her opportunity to serve the City as a

          6  Commissioner of BSA.

          7                 And from what I've seen, just by

          8  running through these documents, none of them have

          9  anything to do with her opportunities or seeking to

         10  become the BSA Commissioner.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Can Council Member

         12  Fidler answer Council Member Comrie's point of

         13  clarification?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Well, I

         15  believe that they're pertinent. And in fact, I'm

         16  coming to a point, and if Council Member Comrie

         17  would be so kind as to let me get to it.

         18                 I also want to point out that the

         19  Committee staff has just noted for me that every one

         20  of these documents that I have just shown to Ms.

         21  Hinkson was given by the Committee at their two and

         22  a half meeting with her and discussed with her. So,

         23  this is not, I don't want anyone to think that we're

         24  surprising her.

         25                 MR. CROWELL: I apologize. Counsel
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          2  wasn't permitted to be with her during the

          3  investigation the other day, and so we need a little

          4  bit of time just to look at this.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Counsel, I just

          6  want to advise you, I'm going to give five minutes

          7  and counting. If you can please make sure within

          8  that time.

          9                 MR. CROWELL: Madam Chair, I think

         10  we're ready. Ms. Hinkson did say she was shown these

         11  documents the other day at the three-hour meeting

         12  that Counsel was not permitted to attend, but she

         13  was not given a chance to read them. She didn't

         14  actually inspect them. She's looked at them now, and

         15  both myself and Mr. Kilsch have looked at them.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you very

         17  much. We will proceed.

         18                 Council Member Fidler, I would like

         19  to request that you finish this line of questioning

         20  within the next ten minutes. I have already allotted

         21  15 minutes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I'm doing my

         23  very, very best.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: And we will help

         25  you do your very best.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I think this

          3  is a sufficiently important issue that warrants the

          4  time.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Absolutely.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Ms. Hinkson,

          7  when did you become aware for the first time that

          8  Vornado Realty Trust was seeking to develop the

          9  property next door to Kings Plaza?

         10                 MS. HINKSON: I did not know that

         11  Vornado was involved in, I guess it's the Lowe's

         12  that you're talking about, until actually, I guess

         13  it was the City Council's Counsel mentioned them the

         14  other day.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Actually, I

         16  was referring to the first plan to build an Apex

         17  Movie Theater.

         18                 MS. HINKSON: I had no knowledge of

         19  that.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And so this

         21  letter from Amanda Burden to you certifying the

         22  application for that project in 2003 escaped your

         23  attention?

         24                 MS. HINKSON: Well, what you're

         25  looking at, and to put it in context, is that that's
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          2  the cover sheet of a series of drawings that

          3  probably were submitted to City Planning, and which

          4  the Building Department gets a copy of, and we

          5  probably received maybe five or six of those a day

          6  in the office and there is a standard operating

          7  procedure where they are clocked in and then put

          8  into a file for City Planning stuff of this nature.

          9  So, I probably did not look at it particularly,

         10  unless it would have been brought to my attention,

         11  at which time I would have asked to see the file.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I would ask

         13  you to page down a few pages to my letter to you

         14  dated August 14th, 2003, in which I referred to the

         15  plan submitted by Vornado Realty, told you that

         16  there were serious questions that were being raised

         17  by my community and asked you not to issue any

         18  building permits. Did that ever come to your

         19  attention?

         20                 MS. HINKSON: I presume that I

         21  answered you. Did I answer you? Actually, I should

         22  say so you understand sort of the process, that you

         23  are an elected official, so therefore your

         24  correspondence would have been handled by Ken Lazar,

         25  and I'm sure you know Ken.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I know Ken. I

          3  think he is the best thing about the Brooklyn

          4  Building's Department.

          5                 MS. HINKSON: I think he's the best

          6  thing, too.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: But,

          8  nonetheless, I wrote a letter to the Commissioner

          9  asking that no permits be issued and that did not

         10  come to your attention.

         11                 MS. HINKSON: I understand that, but I

         12  also think that request of this nature, that no

         13  permits be issued because you, as an elected

         14  official, were requesting that, is probably not

         15  something that unless there was a reason rooted

         16  within my scope, meaning the Building Code or the

         17  zoning resolution that would permit me to not issue

         18  a lawful permit, I don't think you would want me to

         19  stop a process, a lawful process, because you

         20  personally had asked me to do so.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: No, I

         22  wouldn't. And that's not really the thrust of the

         23  question. The thrust of the question --

         24                 MS. HINKSON: That's what's in the

         25  letter, so...
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: But the thrust

          3  of the question is did you become aware of it at

          4  that point? Or was, you know, Councilman Fidler, you

          5  know, he's nuts. No one needs to address this

          6  question, it never got to your desk.

          7                 MS. HINKSON: Perhaps maybe I should

          8  read the letter out loud.

          9                 "Dear Commissioner Hinkson, I am

         10  requesting that no permits be issued by the

         11  Department of Buildings for the plans submitted by

         12  Vornado Realty for the outdoor parking lot that have

         13  been recently been certified by the New York City

         14  Planning Commission. I and the elected officials of

         15  this area, along with the related civic associations

         16  and community activists, have obtained many

         17  documents, plans and zoning regulations which need

         18  close examination and which require a great deal of

         19  time and meetings."

         20                 So, I'm assuming that you wanted me

         21  to hold up any permits that might have been

         22  requested by the applicants after what appeared to

         23  be a lawful City Planning process.

         24                 I don't know if you really want me to

         25  --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: You know, the

          3  letter didn't merit a reply.

          4                 MS. HINKSON: I don't know. I don't

          5  see anything here. I don't know if I replied to you

          6  or not.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Well, I could

          8  tell you that if you did, the reply never arrived.

          9                 You know, take a quick look through

         10  this, you see numbers of letters to the Buildings

         11  Department on the issue of Vornado Realty --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Council Member,

         13  you have five more minutes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Well, you

         15  know, I mean I've got to get answers to my

         16  questions.

         17                 You have a number of letters that

         18  were written to Vornado Realty regarding the Vornado

         19  Realty Trust. First, their plan to build the Apex

         20  Movie Theater, and then their subsequent to build a

         21  Lowe's big box store on that site.

         22                 Did you ever provide the information

         23  that my office asked you for in these letters over a

         24  two and a half year period?

         25                 MS. HINKSON: It is my understanding,
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          2  and I'm looking at responses that your office was

          3  given a response, an appropriate one, considering

          4  that it appears that the site is considered

          5  sensitive in the sense of security reasons, and

          6  therefore we requested that, one, you write a letter

          7  as a foil request, and then second, that you would

          8  be given access to the plans of the mall, or

          9  whatever we had available under supervision, which

         10  is what we do when we have a sensitive site.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: So, after two

         12  and a half years, and by the way, this does not

         13  include the dogged phone calls of the members of my

         14  staff to your office asking for these plans on

         15  January 11th, 2006, she told me that for reasons of

         16  national security, you couldn't send me the plans

         17  but we could come down and look at them.

         18                 MS. HINKSON: Absolutely.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And did you

         20  ever provide the zoning analysis of the parking at

         21  Kings Plaza that was asked for that you, in fact,

         22  promised in the one letter that you did respond to?

         23                 MS. HINKSON: I believe that I did

         24  respond to you that my Code and Zoning specialist

         25  would be happy to work with whomever you sent to our
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          2  office, and I don't believe that you did send

          3  somebody to the office and take advantage of what we

          4  were offering.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I believe if I

          6  could read your letter it says, "The Code and Zoning

          7  specialist will also determine the exact of spaces

          8  permitted, given the current conditions. Our office

          9  has been extremely busy. I apologize for any

         10  inconvenience this has caused. The Code and Zoning

         11  specialist will be in direct contact with you.

         12                 Do you believe that your Code and

         13  Zoning specialist ever responded to my office? Or

         14  did I get stonewalled for two and a half years on

         15  this Vornado Realty Project by your office?

         16                 MS. HINKSON: I believe that we

         17  offered a service to you. We told you how your

         18  office could avail yourself of that service, and if

         19  your office chose not to do that, I can't do much

         20  about that.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: At this point,

         22  Madam Chairman, I need to explain --

         23                 MS. HINKSON: Also, it appears -- it

         24  appears also that my last correspondence with you I

         25  guess was in December of 2005, and I left the
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          2  following month.

          3                 So, I presume that if you had not

          4  gotten a response after December that you should

          5  probably have contacted the new Borough Commissioner

          6  of Brooklyn.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Well, you'll

          8  see that there is a letter to your successor farther

          9  down the line, but that's not terribly relevant. The

         10  point being, quite frankly, that I got no response.

         11  In two and a half years, I got no response on the

         12  issues that were raised about this Vornado Realty

         13  project that's permitting them to develop this site.

         14                 Now, I don't really expect that you

         15  could answer this question. It's more by way of

         16  comment.

         17                 The very first document in this file,

         18  and I hope my colleagues have it, is a letter that

         19  was sent by a woman by the name of Laurel

         20  Brandstetter, who was a planner in the Brooklyn City

         21  Planning Office in May of 2003, and it was sent to

         22  Community Board 18, which includes the area of

         23  Queens Plaza.

         24                 That letter said that Brandstetter

         25  was resigning her position at City Planning, because
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          2  she felt she had been unethically pressured by

          3  individuals to design the Vornado Realty Project in

          4  a manner that would not require public review, or as

          5  we know, would not be subject to ULURP. She felt it

          6  was inappropriate and it was unethical.

          7                 And my office then, for the next two

          8  and a half years, is unable to get the simplest

          9  question about this project answered from your

         10  office. And you testified that it is, maybe not

         11  regular, but it's not unusual for government

         12  agencies to have meetings about plans and

         13  developments that are going on in Brooklyn.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Council Member

         15  Fidler, your time has come --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Madam

         17  Chairwoman, I have been interrupted repeatedly and I

         18  am getting to the point, and I am getting to a very

         19  important point, because this Committee needs to

         20  know about the Department of Investigations report

         21  that is missing in this file. I think that is the

         22  most salient fact that we need to know. And I ask

         23  your indulgence for that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Council member, I

         25  have given you my full indulgence for the past 20
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          2  minutes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: This Committee

          4  needs to know that there was a complaint filed on

          5  this letter, that this Councilman asked the Mayor's

          6  Office to produce the Department of Investigation

          7  Report on this matter to see whether or not the

          8  Buildings Department was directed by somebody to

          9  assist this developer, whether it was the developer,

         10  the developer's attorney, someone in government.

         11                 I can prove for a fact --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Council Member

         13  Fidler.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: For a fact,

         15  Madam Chairwoman, that this investigation occurred,

         16  investigators were sent, files were picked up at the

         17  City Planning Commission, but the Commissioner of

         18  the Department of Investigation insists that no

         19  investigation was conducted.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Council Member

         21  Fidler. Council Member Fidler.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: That is wrong.

         23  Where is Holden and Urlichtman (phonetic) in all of

         24  this?

         25                 There is an investigation that is
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          2  missing. I demand that it be produced. I don't

          3  believe this Administration should get this

          4  appointee passed through until we know whether or

          5  not that in fact occurred.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Council Member

          7  Fidler, I would appreciate that your respect towards

          8  this Committee and this Chair resume.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I have respect

         10  for the Chair.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Council Member

         12  Fidler, I let you go on a tirade, and now you must

         13  stop. Stop.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Yes, Ma'am.

         15                 MR. KILSCH: Madam Chairperson?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Can we have some

         17  order here?

         18                 I would like everyone's indulgence,

         19  to take a five-minute break. I'd like this Committee

         20  to move to the room next door, because this body has

         21  its Stated Meeting to conduct. And, so, this

         22  Committee will now take place next door.

         23                 I would like to request Ms. Hinkson

         24  to join us, along with her two counsels.

         25                 (Recess taken.)
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: We will resume

          3  from this break.

          4                 I'd like to request that Committee

          5  members take the opportunity to choose whether or

          6  not they would like to continue to question Ms.

          7  Susan Hinkson in the order I will read.

          8                 Council Member Dickens, Recchia, Bill

          9  DeBlasio, James, Felder, Oddo, Comrie and Garodnick.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Point of

         11  order?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I'd like to

         14  make a motion that we move to a vote given the time,

         15  and the fact that I promised my wife that I would

         16  take her to the airport today for her first trip

         17  going away as a business trip, so I can not lose my

         18  life before the end of the day.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Council

         20  Member Comrie.

         21                 I can appreciate the motion. There is

         22  a motion on the floor that we -- I'm sorry, can we

         23  just have some order? I just want to repeat --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I just want to

         25  make a motion that we move to a vote and table any
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          2  other questions at this particular time, and I'd

          3  like to get a second on a motion.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: We have Inez

          5  Dickens as a second, and Council Member Baez as a

          6  third.

          7                 We have a discussion on the motion.

          8  Council Member Jackson and Council Member Oddo.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you,

         10  Madam Chair.

         11                 Speaking on the motion to take a vote

         12  on this, I think that clearly this is an important

         13  step in the process of advice and consent, and to

         14  not allow a thorough discussion on a candidate's

         15  qualifications and to try to -- and I understand,

         16  and Council member, Madam Chair, you know that two

         17  weeks ago I was here, I was waiting in order to take

         18  care of our business, I was asked can I go buy some

         19  lunch and come back, and even as of today, I've been

         20  here since 10:30 when we were supposed to start, and

         21  regardless of the reasons why we didn't start, and I

         22  understand those reasons, in order to cut short the

         23  questioning of a candidate up for an extremely

         24  important position, is not giving the due process

         25  that we rightfully deserve. Even though I do
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          2  understand the frustrations of many of my

          3  colleagues, and believe me, I'm a little frustrated,

          4  too, not at the questioning, but at the fact that

          5  this has taken so long, and at the fact that we are

          6  doing it right before the Stated Meeting, that's our

          7  internal issue that we have to address. But to cut

          8  short a democratic process where my colleagues need

          9  to question a candidate, in my opinion, it would be

         10  inappropriate.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Council

         12  Member Jackson.

         13                 Council Member Oddo.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I just want to

         15  echo the sentiments of Council Member Jackson. I am

         16  supporting this applicant. I am strongly supporting

         17  this applicant, and I was hoping that Council Member

         18  Fidler could sort of reach his conclusion a little

         19  bit more promptly, but to cut off this discussion at

         20  this point I think is wrong for this body, I think

         21  is disrespectful to a member who I think all of us

         22  around this table respect. He is a duly elected

         23  member who represents his constituency, and right or

         24  wrong, if we disagree with the questioning, the tone

         25  of the questioning, he has a right to do what he
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          2  thinks is right to defend his community.

          3                 This is a good thing for this body.

          4  It may be uncomfortable for a witness I'm

          5  supporting, but this is a good thing for this body

          6  and members come in here and passionately fight for

          7  what they think is the interest of their community,

          8  and for us to cut it off at this point when we've

          9  had hearings on stuff that is a whole lot less

         10  important and a whole lot longer, I think is a

         11  mistake.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Council

         13  Member Oddo.

         14                 I'd like to end the discussion. The

         15  last member, Council Member Felder.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Yes, I just

         17  wanted to suggest maybe a compromise, where the

         18  Chair possibly would entertain --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Do you have a

         20  friendly amendment?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Yes, to limit

         22  it. To limit the discussions per member, whatever

         23  the Chair decides.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: So we have a

         25  motion on the floor and a friendly amendment to the
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          2  motion.

          3                 Council Member Comrie.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I would accept

          5  the friendly amendment to the motion, but I would

          6  urge colleagues to focus on what her qualifications

          7  are for this office. I would respect Councilman

          8  Fidler highly. I have the utmost respect for him. I

          9  understand what he's trying to do, but this is about

         10  her qualification to serve on the BSA. This is not

         11  about anything else other than her ability and

         12  qualifications to serve on the BSA with the full

         13  substance and knowledge of her record and her

         14  qualifications to do that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Council Member

         16  Comrie, I'm sorry to cut you off.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I'm sorry,

         18  Council member, and I understand you're under a lot

         19  of pressure --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: No. No pressure.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But I think

         22  that members should focus on those questions and not

         23  get into inquisition.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: And if you could

         25  repeat the motion with the friendly amendment?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: The motion was

          3  to end questioning, but the friendly amendment would

          4  be to limit the amount of time that members have to

          5  question this witness.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: And, so, do we

          7  have --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: The motion now

          9  is to, if you want me to limit the time, I would say

         10  to five minutes or less. Five minutes per member.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: We have a motion

         12  on the floor to limit the discussion of questions

         13  and answers for a total of five minutes per member.

         14                 Council Member Comrie, was that

         15  correct?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Correct.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Do we have a

         18  motion to vote on?

         19                 Are we ready to vote?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Madam

         21  Chair, just a question. This may be, this is a

         22  question for our counsel, this may be wholly within

         23  your discretion. I'm not sure that we even need to

         24  have a motion and votes on the amount of time. My

         25  suggestion to you would be, if appropriate, and
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          2  correct with the Council, that you should set the

          3  limits and we will abide by them. But if that's

          4  proper, I just think you should consult quickly with

          5  counsel and see if that is correct.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: I appreciate the

          7  respect you've expressed to the Chair, but there was

          8  a motion, and there was a friendly amendment to the

          9  motion, and so I just wanted for the sake of

         10  clarity. So we will have a vote now. Council Member

         11  Katz.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I would argue, I

         13  think Councilman Garodnick is absolutely right, and

         14  I would argue that all of us as Chairs need to have

         15  the flexibility when we run our meetings to be able

         16  to limit questions when need be. And so I would ask,

         17  just for the virtue of the institution that it

         18  really is your prerogative, unless counsel disagrees

         19  with that, I think that Councilman Garodnick has an

         20  excellent point.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Madam Chair, I

         22  just wanted to try to refocus members on the issue

         23  at hand.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Fantastic.

         25                 Can we just focus now on this motion?
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          2                 I believe that we have a consensus

          3  that we're going to move forward. We're not going to

          4  have the call of a vote, but rather we're going to

          5  continue the list of members who would like to

          6  question the candidate. Council Member Inez Dickens.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Yes. But I

          8  have a question, question on the motion.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: We will not have a

         10  motion. I will repeat. We will not have a motion to

         11  vote on. I will have full prerogative as to cutting

         12  off a member, and I will limit the line of

         13  questioning and answers to five minutes.

         14                 I will have a time clock here I will

         15  abide by. I respectfully request to please end when

         16  I tell you to do so. Thank you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you so

         18  much, Madam Chair.

         19                 You know, I've been listening for the

         20  last hour or more on questions of this witness, and

         21  it seems to me that the question before us today is

         22  whether Ms. Hinkson -- is that correct? Am I

         23  pronouncing it correctly? Hinkson. -- Has the

         24  character and fitness to serve on the Board of

         25  Standards and Appeals.
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          2                 She is well educated, and has an

          3  excellent reputation and has substantial experience

          4  as Borough Commissioner of Buildings, both in

          5  Brooklyn and Staten Island.

          6                 By the way, I do appreciate your

          7  composure on this difficult line of questioning

          8  today. But I must say that I have heard nothing, and

          9  I do respect my colleague Council Member Fidler, but

         10  I have heard nothing in his line of questioning that

         11  raises concerns to me about her knowledge, her

         12  character or her judgment to serve on this Board.

         13                 I respectfully ask that my colleagues

         14  support her and that we move along quickly to end

         15  this. And, yes, Council Member, I have read this

         16  letter, but I read nothing in this letter that in no

         17  way implicates nor definitively states that she,

         18  herself, or that she was personally aware of what is

         19  alluded to herein.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Council

         22  Member Dickens.

         23                 I'd like to call Council Member

         24  Recchia.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Yes,
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          2  Commissioner Hinkson, good afternoon. I will be as

          3  short as possible.

          4                 I would like to draw your attention

          5  to Mr. Fidler's letter in August 14th, 2003, where

          6  he is requesting that no permits be issued to

          7  Vornado Realty. Do you have that letter in front of

          8  you?

          9                 MS. HINKSON: Yes, I do.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: In that

         11  letter, does he state that he should not give out

         12  any permits because they're a violation of a

         13  Building Code and he cites the Building Code?

         14                 MS. HINKSON: No, he does not.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Does he in

         16  that letter cite any violation of the Administrative

         17  Code and say you shouldn't give the permits out --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Council Member

         19  Recchia, hold on one second.

         20                 Ms. Hinkson, pull the mike towards

         21  you.

         22                 MS. HINKSON: I'm sorry.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: And make sure it's

         24  on.

         25                 MS. HINKSON: Can you hear me?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Closer.

          3                 MS. HINKSON: That okay? All right.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Okay, did you

          5  hear my question?

          6                 MS. HINKSON: I think your question

          7  was, was that is there a regulation, a zoning

          8  regulation or Building Code regulation that's cited

          9  as to why I should not permit a particular permit

         10  should be issued; and, no, there is no particular --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: And in that

         12  letter, it just says he's requesting that no permits

         13  be issued; is that correct?

         14                 MS. HINKSON: Correct, yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: And in that

         16  letter, does he ask anywhere in that letter your

         17  immediate response to this letter is appropriate?

         18                 MS. HINKSON: No.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: In that

         20  letter does he say could you please contact my

         21  office upon receipt of this letter?

         22                 MS. HINKSON: No.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Anywhere in

         24  that letter does he say please contact my office?

         25                 MS. HINKSON: No, he does not.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: I have no

          3  further questions. You are wonderful. I support you

          4  100 percent.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Council Member

          6  Bill DeBlasio.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Thank you,

          8  Madam Chair. I want to thank you for the way you've

          9  handled this difficult hearing.

         10                 I thank Council Member Fidler for

         11  asking I think important questions, including

         12  particularly about Kings Plaza, and I hope we will

         13  follow-up in the future on that.

         14                 And I thank Ms. Hinkson for her

         15  composure in this process, as well. A simple

         16  statement and a quick question.

         17                 The statement is, after it became

         18  clear, Ms. Hinkson, that you were being nominated

         19  for this position, I talked to a number of leaders

         20  in my community who had been intimately involved in

         21  the rezoning process for the southern park of Park

         22  Slope and parts of Windsor Terrace, parts of

         23  Greenwood Heights, I think a lot of people who were

         24  around that process would agree it was an example of

         25  tremendous cooperation between the Mayor's Office,
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          2  Borough President's Office, City Planning, Community

          3  Board, local elected officials, et cetera. And the

          4  community activists led the way and I think were

          5  very responsible and strong in the effort.

          6                 I will be honest with you that a

          7  number of the folks I spoke to raised concerns that

          8  they felt that during your tenure you and your team

          9  did not necessarily provide them the type of support

         10  they would have hoped in dealing with developers,

         11  who in the views of many were attempting to do

         12  inappropriate things to get in ahead of the

         13  rezoning, or to work around the eventual rezoning.

         14                 We've all, a lot of us know what

         15  these over-development pressures look like and what

         16  developers will do to try and maneuver around any

         17  restrictions.

         18                 So, I'm being very straightforward

         19  with you. I don't know you personally. I'm raising

         20  concerns that were raised to me by people I respect

         21  tremendously, who I have worked with regularly in my

         22  community.

         23                 And the other concern, and I welcome

         24  in a moment any response you have, obviously. The

         25  other concern has to do with situations that are
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          2  similar, situations that are in Brooklyn, I believe

          3  during your tenure where unfortunately reports of

          4  problems at worksites regulated by your agency,

          5  reports of dangerous conditions of violations were

          6  later followed by an accident which involved either

          7  serious injury or death. The sites include, and I

          8  will say these are not in my district, a couple of

          9  them are near my district but they are not near my

         10  district, 187 20th Street, 733 Ocean Parkway, 207

         11  South First Street, 103 Meserole Street, and 125

         12  Park Avenue, all Brooklyn, all, again, either

         13  serious injury or death ultimately occurred as a

         14  result of the incidence, and the concern raised to

         15  me by activists who talked to their fellow activists

         16  around Brooklyn, was that the early reports of

         17  problems were not followed up in as aggressive a

         18  manner as possible. No one was saying there was no

         19  follow-up. The concern is was there sufficient

         20  follow-up to do everything humanely possible to

         21  avoid what later came to pass. And then after the

         22  tragedies, was there follow-up to see if there was

         23  anything that developers or builders were doing that

         24  suggested a larger pattern that should lead to any

         25  kind of restrictions on them going forward.
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          2                 I know that's a lot to throw at you,

          3  but we're obviously in a time crunch. Those are the

          4  concerns that have been raised to me, and I welcome

          5  any response you have.

          6                 MS. HINKSON: Let me first respond to

          7  the issue of enforcement, in terms of the

          8  downzoning. I think that that's what you were asking

          9  me first. And indeed it goes back to trying to

         10  utilize the amount of resources that one has in an

         11  office, to be able to manage a big project and in

         12  many cases we would be managing more than one

         13  rezoning at a time.

         14                 Indeed there is a lot of building

         15  going on and we try to cover as much as we possibly

         16  can. Unfortunately, or fortunately, I guess, for

         17  developers, they've realized that the best time to

         18  try to do work is when the majority of the workforce

         19  basically goes home, so that, you know, if someone

         20  calls up, you might not get the kind of or quick

         21  response that you would hope for.

         22                 And I think that the Department has

         23  recognized that problem, and is addressing it as we

         24  speak. And I also think that thanks to some funding

         25  that the Council has provided, that that money is
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          2  really earmarked for that particular type of work

          3  and that kind of project, to go out and to make sure

          4  that work is not being done after hours, that people

          5  are not working in contravening a stop work order,

          6  so I think that it's an issue and a problem but the

          7  Department recognized and has been able to really

          8  put in place some safeguards. It was a lot of work,

          9  a lot of rezoning and few people, but now we're I

         10  think on the road to being able to handle that kind

         11  of work.

         12                 The second item concerning accidents

         13  is that the process that when you get a complaint in

         14  about a property, it's categorized A, B or C.

         15  Typically if it's a big safety issue, that's going

         16  to be an A complaint, which means that we respond to

         17  that within hours really, or within very reasonable

         18  amount of time.

         19                 Depending on what the inspector

         20  finds, of course, you know, going to, depending on

         21  what's there and what he feels is going to be

         22  appropriate, an appropriate action, it may be

         23  shutting down a site, it may be pointing out some

         24  safety deficiencies and issuing violations.

         25                 In the sites that you mentioned, I
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          2  would have to really look to see when we responded

          3  and how we responded, but I think, in general I

          4  think that we would find that the Brooklyn office

          5  was very good at responding, being able to cite an

          6  individual or individuals for issues of safety, and

          7  especially during --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Ms. Hinkson, if

          9  you could wrap up your answer. Thank you.

         10                 MS. HINKSON: In short, I think that

         11  you would find that we responded appropriately, and

         12  that there was sufficient follow-up, not only by the

         13  borough office, but also by our central office as

         14  well.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Thank you.

         16  And thank you, Madam Chair. I just would note, Ms.

         17  Hinkson, I think it's quite evident you're going to

         18  end up on the BSA, and I want to urge you to please

         19  in every way reach out when community people bring

         20  forward a concern, and please honor it.

         21                 Often times they may not be as

         22  organized or eloquent as those representing

         23  developers, but I think they have a lot to say and

         24  we really appreciate knowing that you will be

         25  equally responsive to them.
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          2                 MS. HINKSON: I will. Thank you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Council

          5  Member DeBlasio.

          6                 Council Member James.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: At the last

          8  Stated Council Meeting, several members of the City

          9  Council voiced our objection to the lack of

         10  diversity in the pool of applicants that the

         11  Administration had put before the Arts Council. The

         12  objections were substantive, they were personal and

         13  very relevant.

         14                 The line of questioning here today

         15  has nothing to do with the qualifications of the

         16  candidate. What I witnessed today was a witch hunt,

         17  a very hostile witch hunt, a witch hunt which was

         18  disrespectful, not only to this body, but to the

         19  witness before us. And the line of questioning was

         20  very parochial. And what strikes me as ironic is

         21  that the individual who asked this line of

         22  questioning, the persecutor, or should I say

         23  prosecutor who asked the line of questions --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Totally

         25  outrageous.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Council member.

          3                 Council Member James, is there a

          4  question for the candidate?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: It's more a

          6  comment and a question. It will end in a question.

          7                 The individual --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: If you can refrain

          9  from a debate amongst colleagues and accusations, or

         10  any sneering, or whatever you would like to call it,

         11  I just want to be able to get through this hearing

         12  and respect the time that this witness and candidate

         13  -- I apologize. Not witness. This candidate has

         14  given to this Committee, and how patient we have all

         15  been in this process. We'd like to hear the facts.

         16  Thank you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Well, the facts

         18  are as follows, is there words were used today such

         19  as conflict of interest, words such as appearance of

         20  impropriety, moral integrity and sacrosanct against

         21  this candidate, and clearly Ms. Hinkson, based upon

         22  my experience in the Borough of Brooklyn, has been

         23  nothing but responsive to the needs of the residents

         24  that I represent and to the needs of the Borough of

         25  Brooklyn.
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          2                 I could cite you two examples. There

          3  was a building that collapsed in my district where a

          4  young lady died. Ms. Hinkson personally came out and

          5  stood with me for six hours as that body was removed

          6  and as they removed all of that rubbish from that

          7  building. I don't think any Commissioner would have

          8  done that. I thank you for that.

          9                 Spencer Street, a building which

         10  currently does not have a certificate of occupancy,

         11  where under a prior Administration they

         12  unfortunately got behind, got delayed, and a

         13  certificate of occupancy was issued. You have been

         14  very responsive to that office. Clearly, Ms.

         15  Hinkson, you can recall those two incidences,

         16  correct?

         17                 MS. HINKSON: Yes, I do.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And I cite to

         19  you the letters that have been before us today,

         20  letters from my colleague, dated August 14th, August

         21  19th, and a letter dated August -- excuse me,

         22  October 20th, where you talk about security concerns

         23  with respect to Kings Plaza, which is why you could

         24  not provide my colleague the permit; is that not the

         25  case?
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          2                 MS. HINKSON: I did not provide him

          3  with drawings. He needed to come and take a look at

          4  them himself.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And you offered

          6  him the opportunity to come down to your office and

          7  look at the plans because of your concerns with

          8  regards to the security of Kings Plaza, yes?

          9                 MS. HINKSON: That is correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And that

         11  individual knows not to do so, yes?

         12                 MS. HINKSON: As far as I know, they

         13  did not come.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Then I thank

         15  you, and I thank you on behalf of the constituents

         16  of Brooklyn. I would dare not put my own personal

         17  and parochial interests above that of the public

         18  interests. Congratulations on your nomination.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Council

         20  Member James.

         21                 Council Member Felder.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 I just have some comments about the

         25  discussion we had. You know, it's clear that we
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          2  started out with some questioning that sounded like

          3  issues of perhaps corruption and then led to murder

          4  later on on her watch, and it's just interesting,

          5  and I am only going to speak for myself at this

          6  point the following comments: I think, you know,

          7  listening to some of the stuff, It almost sounded

          8  like the clock is clocking on to change its time, a

          9  minute forty-two. I just want to make sure that the

         10  Chair knows that I'm not --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Council Member

         12  Felder, I have my own clock.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 I know because my mother-in-law is

         16  everywhere, okay? Anyway, the point is I'm going to

         17  speak for myself. I think that I would be kidding

         18  myself if I thought that everything that I do is so

         19  pure and so ethical and so morally perfect and to

         20  hold anyone to the standard that my respected dear

         21  friend Councilman Fidler asked, I tell you I was on

         22  another world. I'm just thinking about all of the

         23  people I accepted contributions from that come in

         24  front of the City Council that we do votes on, there

         25  were candidates that are nominated for other
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          2  appointments that we as Council members push for,

          3  and we have asked whether it's the Administration or

          4  the Speaker to try to promote a particular candidate

          5  and then we go back to approve or disapprove the

          6  same candidate. You know, I mean, am I the devil?

          7  Charles, don't answer that, okay?

          8                 I'm listening to the stuff really.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Councilman, you

         10  have one minute.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I didn't have

         12  my five minutes, and I won't scream, but I will keep

         13  on talking just like Lew.

         14                 So, Lew first talked about her not

         15  being independent, and Sheldon Lobell, let me tell

         16  you, there is a business, this is called politics,

         17  and if everybody that Sheldon Lobell told that he

         18  was going to make sure they got what they want, got

         19  them, there would be 800 appointments on the BSA.

         20  Eighty-hundred appointments. Who is Sheldon Lobell,

         21  for Heaven sake? I mean, he may be somebody who is

         22  in the business just like everybody else. This

         23  business is not holy. It's not holy by any means and

         24  never will be, so we try to do the best we can.

         25                 And then this letter by this
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          2  employee. She may be the best employee that ever

          3  existed. She may be the worst employee that ever

          4  existed and decided to write a letter because this

          5  was the perfect opportunity to place the blame on

          6  something else. I don't know what's going on.

          7                 So, to conclude -- and Charles shook

          8  his head when I said I don't know what's going on.

          9                 Just to conclude, I just want to say

         10  that my experience is that Commissioner Hinkson has

         11  not been responsive all the time to my needs. She's

         12  always been fair every time. And I have been upset

         13  on many occasions. But that's how it's supposed to

         14  be, and I look forward to her being at the BSA and

         15  doing the job right, period.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Council

         17  Member Felder.

         18                 Council Member Oddo.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: First, I rescind

         20  my objection to Leroy Comrie's motion. With

         21  apologies.

         22                 Commissioner Hinkson, you don't

         23  believe that you owe Mr. Lobell anything, do you?

         24                 MS. HINKSON: No, I do not owe him.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: You won't favor
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          2  any of Mr. Lobell's applications unduly and

          3  appropriately, will you?

          4                 MS. HINKSON: Absolutely not.

          5  Absolutely not.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: You will

          7  evaluate Mr. Lobell's applications fairly and

          8  objectively, won't you?

          9                 MS. HINKSON: Yes, I will.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: And let me just

         11  say this, I alluded to it earlier: You came to

         12  Staten Island in a shake-up of the line up of the

         13  local offices, and whether you want to admit it or

         14  not, I think part of your instructions which you

         15  quiet me and shut me up because I was making lots of

         16  waves. You didn't say yes to every letter I sent you

         17  and every request I made and stop work orders and

         18  all that. You evaluated them objectively and made a

         19  decision.

         20                 MS. HINKSON: Absolutely.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Council

         23  Member Oddo.

         24                 Council Member Comrie.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Yes, I want to
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          2  thank everyone, because I'm already late, so if you

          3  see me black and blue tomorrow, or actually on

          4  Friday when she gets back, you'll know why.

          5                 Clearly, I just want to thank the

          6  candidate Ms. Hinkson at this particular point for

          7  her tenacity and strength and spirit. I think that

          8  you're prehearing questions and answering them

          9  honestly is actually noble, and I think the Zoning

         10  Advisory Council and the people that recommended you

         11  are no different than the people that have

         12  recommended other candidates that have come before

         13  this body.

         14                 We've had questions and issues about

         15  who recommends people, but frankly, to honestly say

         16  who recommended you for this opportunity is clear

         17  and passionate and fair.

         18                 To be grilled on that I think is

         19  unfair. And clearly, your responsibility in BSA will

         20  be transparent, and you will have many opportunities

         21  to come before people that you probably will be very

         22  familiar with in your past life and history as

         23  Brooklyn Borough Commissioner of Staten Island,

         24  Borough Commissioner. But clearly, you have a

         25  responsibility, and you have shown that already, to
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          2  answer the questions honestly, deal with the issues

          3  carefully and be responsive to the entire community.

          4                 And with that, I just want to thank

          5  you for putting up with us.

          6                 You know, I don't mean to demean the

          7  process, or I didn't try to -- and I know that I

          8  tried to end the process earlier, but I thought that

          9  the point had been made and everything had been

         10  stated. And I just want to restate that I think that

         11  you're an excellent candidate, and I want to thank

         12  the Mayor's Office for bringing you to us. I want to

         13  thank the Zoning Advisory Council, who I know has

         14  been looking for candidates for many years to

         15  finally find a candidate that would accept going

         16  through this process, because this is not an easy

         17  process to have your life dissected and to have

         18  everything that you've done throughout your entire

         19  career investigated down to whether or not you paid

         20  a parking ticket, to whether or not you did your

         21  taxes, to provide tax returns, to serve -- sorry, I

         22  didn't know where that voice was coming from. I

         23  thought it was my wife. To serve in any capacity and

         24  to help the City grow is actually noble. So, I want

         25  to thank you for your service.
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          2                 I understand what Councilman Lew

          3  Fidler was trying to do to try to make sure that

          4  whoever serves in this capacity is being fair and

          5  open and partial to all people that come before it,

          6  and I think in that vein I want to commend him for

          7  his efforts to make sure that that is held

          8  sacrosanct, because that is important to me that any

          9  Commissioner that serves in this City must be

         10  responsive, not only to one set of people but to all

         11  of the people in this City, because as this City

         12  tries to grow and deal with everything that we have

         13  to deal with, to be the number one City in the

         14  world, I think our job as Council members is to make

         15  sure that every person that wants to interact with a

         16  City agency is treated equally and fairly.

         17                 With that, I applaud you.

         18                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Council

         20  Member Comrie.

         21                 Council Member Garodnick.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Thank you

         23  very much, Madam Chair. I will be very brief. I just

         24  wanted to, I just actually had some questions, but I

         25  think Council Member Oddo asked the questions that I
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          2  wanted to ask. I did come to this hearing with an

          3  open mind today. I wanted to hear from Council

          4  Member Fidler and what he had on his mind, and

          5  having heard his questions and your responses about

          6  Mr. Lobell, the Kings Plaza situation, it seems, it

          7  continues to seem to me that you are a very highly

          8  qualified candidate, architect, Buildings

          9  Commissioner, somebody who has managed construction

         10  projects and somebody who I think would be a very

         11  strong addition to the BSA.

         12                 And I wanted to also add that I think

         13  you showed a remarkable amount of poise today, too.

         14  And I want you to know that I, and I'm sure that

         15  many of my colleagues, if not all of them, recognize

         16  that. And so, I just wanted to let you know, you've

         17  earned my vote.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Council

         20  Member Garodnick.

         21                 We have been joined by Council Member

         22  Rivera, who is here. And Council Member Brewer.

         23                 I just wanted to acknowledge my

         24  colleagues, Council Member Gonzalez and Council

         25  Member Vann, and Council Member Barron.
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          2                 And, so, by their presence here, as

          3  you can see, this matter has been taken to an

          4  extreme level of seriousness, and I'd like to

          5  proceed with the last witness, who is here to speak

          6  in favor of Susan Hinkson. If that person is still

          7  here, Harold Weinberg.

          8                 Mr. Weinberg, final call. Seeing that

          9  Mr. Weinberg is not here, I would like to request a

         10  roll call of the vote.

         11                 Seeing no one else has further

         12  questioning of this candidate, I'd like to thank Ms.

         13  Hinkson for her remarkable poise, as had been

         14  mentioned, her fair and impartial commitment to the

         15  Board of Standards and Appeals. And we expect to

         16  monitor everything that had been said here, and to

         17  the degree that there is no level of integrity

         18  issues so that we, as City legislators, are doing

         19  our part, just as you have done in your tenure in

         20  the Buildings Department and moving forward in

         21  another capacity for the City of New York.

         22                 Billy.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Reyna.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: I vote in the

         25  affirmative for both Ms. Hinkson and Ms.
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          2  Ottley-Brown. We have two appointments, ladies and

          3  gentlemen.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Rivera.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Finally, I get

          6  to vote aye.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Baez.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Aye.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Clarke.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Madam Chair,

         11  just a comment before my vote.

         12                 I sat here through this entire

         13  process, and my comments are reflective of both

         14  candidates. I think they are certainly qualified and

         15  I will be voting yes for both of them.

         16                 I'd just like to comment on some

         17  observations I had. I think what's very important

         18  for this body, you know, going forward, there has to

         19  be some level of respect, respect for people who we

         20  may or may not agree with, respect for the Chair.

         21  What I felt most uncomfortable about today was the

         22  level of respect that was given to the Chair in

         23  being able to conduct this hearing.

         24                 I think that all of us as colleagues

         25  need to take that into consideration, because we
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          2  don't want our colleagues repeating this type of

          3  behavior to one another and particularly when we

          4  have such a distinguished people before us who come

          5  to us for a fair hearing. That sends the wrong

          6  signal, and while people have very valid concerns,

          7  there are ways to express them that not only show

          8  respect for yourself but show respect for the person

          9  you're interviewing, and also respect for the Chair.

         10                 I hope that we'll all take that into

         11  consideration moving forward, because it was very

         12  uncomfortable today.

         13                 I understand that there are very

         14  passionate issues that individuals may have. It's

         15  not personal. And when you begin to make inquiries

         16  that go to the length they went today, it becomes

         17  personal, and that's when the rest of us as a body

         18  suffer.

         19                 So, thank you very much, Madam Chair.

         20                 Much congratulations to you, Ms.

         21  Hinkson. We expect you to do an extraordinary job.

         22  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Your vote.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Aye on both.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Comrie.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye on both.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Dilan.

          4                 (No response.)

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fidler.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: At the risk of

          7  incurring further wrath of my colleagues and Leroy's

          8  wife, I do need to say, first, I want to extend my

          9  apology to the Chair. I think I did get a little out

         10  of hand. You know, I have the greatest respect for

         11  you and for members of this Committee, and I

         12  apologize to everyone here who had to indulge a

         13  longer than usual questioning.

         14                 However, I do take exception to the

         15  notion that the longer questioning was personal. I

         16  have absolutely no personal contact with Ms.

         17  Hinkson. It's not personal. And if the questioning

         18  on the last matter, which got curtailed at the last

         19  minute so I could kind of explain what the point

         20  was, seemed personal and parochial, it was not. And

         21  the point of the last matter was that on this

         22  particular matter, there are serious questions the

         23  Administration needs to answer. You know, numbers of

         24  agencies have disappeared when it comes to Vornado

         25  Realty Trust and their application for development
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          2  of a site in my district, and the Department of

          3  Investigation, I could have turned this into a full

          4  circus by bringing the witnesses in to testify that

          5  the Department of Investigation conducted an

          6  investigation into the complaint that Ms.

          7  Brandstetter brought, actually Senator Kruger

          8  brought on Ms. Brandstetter's behalf, and, yet, the

          9  Administration tells me to this minute there was no

         10  record of an investigation by DOI. I have a problem

         11  with that. And to the extent that that's a problem

         12  with DOI, and not Ms. Hinkson, and she gets caught

         13  up in it, I apologize to Ms. Hinkson. But I don't

         14  want to reward the Administration for doing

         15  something that at very best smacks as stonewalling.

         16  I think it's wrong. And if I'm the lone voice here

         17  to say that, then so be it. But I can't in all moral

         18  conscience vote for this applicant under those

         19  circumstances.

         20                 And, so, I vote aye on Ms.

         21  Ottley-Brown, and I vote no on Ms. Hinkson.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Dilan.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Aye on all.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Jackson.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Madam Chair,

          3  may I be excused to explain my vote?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Absolutely.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: First I'd like

          6  to say that concerning Dara Ottley-Brown, who is a

          7  candidate, as a member of the BSA, that I've had the

          8  opportunity to work with her and her Commissioner

          9  regarding matters regarding my district, and I've

         10  always found her and the Commissioner to be very

         11  cooperative, and working with a resolution that was

         12  satisfactory to me as a member of this City Council.

         13  So, I wholeheartedly support her appointment.

         14                 As to Susan Hinkson, I do not know

         15  her personally, but I had the opportunity to meet

         16  every candidate two weeks ago when we were waiting,

         17  and she was a very pleasant woman.

         18                 As you know, I have spoken up and you

         19  have also about the fact that we need more diversity

         20  on boards and commissions, and people of color and

         21  from diversity of the various boroughs.

         22                 So, with that, I just need to say

         23  that I do believe from a democratic process point of

         24  view, that we need to make sure that we need to have

         25  the necessary time to do that, and we can discuss
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          2  that internally ourselves, and I'm sure that we

          3  will. But all things considered, I want to thank you

          4  for chairing a meeting that was not necessarily the

          5  easiest meeting to chair.

          6                 And with that, I vote aye on both

          7  items.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Katz.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Just a second to

         10  explain my vote, Madam Chair.

         11                 I just want to echo some of the

         12  comments, especially by Council Member Clarke.

         13                 I think that, I'm not sure it was the

         14  length of the time it was a problem, and the reason

         15  I mention this is because on Land Use it comes up

         16  time and time again where people need to wait around

         17  for members because members are fighting for their

         18  districts and they're trying to reach compromises,

         19  and that's important that all of us had, especially

         20  on Land Use but here as well, and every committee,

         21  patience to be able to question folks and allow

         22  Council members to represent their districts to the

         23  fullest extent of their ability. I think the only

         24  thing that truly bothered me was, and I know that

         25  Council Member Fidler apologized, and I appreciate
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          2  that, but we also need to allow the Chairs to keep

          3  order as we're moving forward, and I think it does

          4  an injustice to the institution when that doesn't

          5  happen, and I just wanted to clarify that issue.

          6                 Also, I'm going to vote yes for this

          7  candidate and the other, and I would also just ask

          8  my colleagues, every one of the candidates that come

          9  up for review really are recommended by someone, and

         10  I think to a certain extent we want the folks that

         11  recommend candidates to be experienced in the field

         12  that they're recommending. And, you know, I think

         13  that if someone recommends a candidate that has

         14  never appeared before the BSA or never appeared

         15  before the City Planning Commission, then that would

         16  also be a problem. So, it is balancing that we need

         17  to reach, and I think from my perspective this

         18  candidate has reached the right balance. So, I vote

         19  aye on both.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: McMahon.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Believing

         22  that our role here in advising and consenting to

         23  appointments is to check the moral integrity and

         24  ability of the candidates who have presented to us,

         25  under these circumstances I believe that both of
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          2  those tests are met, and certainly with Ms. Hinkson,

          3  who I know personally, with flying colors.

          4                 Let me just say before I vote yes, I

          5  send a message to the Administration to be mindful

          6  of the fact that Staten Island does not now have a

          7  resident representative on BSA, and taking a leap of

          8  faith that that will be corrected in the near

          9  future, for these two candidates I proudly vote aye.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Weprin.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: May I be

         12  temporarily excused to explain my vote, Madam Chair?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: I refrained

         15  from talking earlier in the interest of time, and I

         16  respect my colleagues' questions. But I want to say

         17  in the case of Dara Ottley-Brown, as head of the

         18  Finance Committee, I've had a number of dealings

         19  with her and her office, and I think she is highly

         20  qualified and will make an exceptional candidate.

         21                 I just met Ms. Hinkson today, and I

         22  am remarkably impressed with her poise and her

         23  patience and her ability to sit since 10:30 this

         24  morning and undergo what at times I would call

         25  pretty serious cross examination by a number of my
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          2  colleagues, and I, for one, am very impressed with

          3  her credentials.

          4                 And I also actually know Sheldon

          5  Lobell, who I did not know was an issue until I got

          6  here today, and I have a lot of respect for Mr.

          7  Lobell and his integrity and his experience in the

          8  field of zoning and land use, and certainly I would

          9  not hold his recommendation against the candidate, I

         10  would respect that and think that's a strong

         11  recommendation, but based on everything I've heard

         12  today or read, I strongly support Ms. Hinkson's

         13  nomination and I vote aye on both.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Dickens.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Permission,

         17  Madam Chair, to explain my vote?

         18                 Madam Chair, permission, please?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: I'm sorry. Who is

         20  next? I apologize.

         21                 Council Member Felder, don't do that

         22  again. You were out of order. We have a roll call

         23  and I just wanted to have the flow of that vote.

         24  Thank you.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you,

                                                            113

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  Madam Chair.

          3                 I just want to take a moment to

          4  commend my chair on the way and the manner in which

          5  she has tried to conduct this hearing today.

          6                 I also wanted to acknowledge my

          7  Council Member Fidler, my colleague. I did not

          8  personally take your questions on a personal attack

          9  on me, although I did not believe that the line of

         10  questions were relative to what we should have been

         11  focused on, which is whether Ms. Hinkson was

         12  qualified, of which I firmly believe that she is. I

         13  strongly support Ms. Hinkson and Ms. Brown, and vote

         14  affirmative for all.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Speaker Quinn.

         17                 SPEAKER QUINN: Thank you.

         18                 Just before I vote, I want to make a

         19  statement in support of both of the candidates

         20  before us today.

         21                 I do want to underscore the comment

         22  raised, and I know that everyone is mindful of this,

         23  Council Member McMahon, about the Staten Island

         24  representative, and I know we are all going to work

         25  on that issue.
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          2                 First, though, I want to thank

          3  Chairperson Reyna for her patience, first and

          4  foremost, and for her diligence and attention to all

          5  of the appointments that come before her.

          6                 Certainly in the past two weeks she

          7  has given a lot of attention to these particular

          8  appointments, to the make-up and structure of the

          9  Board of Standards and Appeals, the Arts Commission,

         10  other entities and she is doing a really great job

         11  making sure, one, that this Council has a voice that

         12  is heard across the hallway, and I know the

         13  Administration would agree that that voice is being

         14  heard loud and clear, and is also doing a great job

         15  working towards greater diversity and the highest

         16  level of integrity and competence that we could

         17  possibly get on all of the boards that we have

         18  advice and consent on. So, I want to thank her very,

         19  very much for that.

         20                 Regarding the two appointments today,

         21  I think both of these appointments, both of these

         22  women, deserve the unanimous consent of the City

         23  Council, and both of them will be outstanding

         24  members of the Board of Standards and Appeals.

         25                 I just want to say in the case of Ms.
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          2  Ottley-Brown, there is something exciting about the

          3  fact that she came to us I think just through the

          4  website and postings, which is a very exciting idea

          5  to think of someone who is so interested in being

          6  part of government that she sought us out as opposed

          7  to the reverse.

          8                 On the issue that I think has gotten

          9  more attendance today, Ms. Hinkson's appointment, I

         10  want to urge my colleagues in support.

         11                 A lot of questions were raised, and

         12  in deference to those questions we laid this

         13  appointment aside for two weeks, and there have been

         14  numerous meetings, much thorough review on all of

         15  the concerns that have been raised. And I have

         16  respect for all of the concerns that have been

         17  raised, but there has not been one thing that has

         18  been uncovered during the investigations, during the

         19  meetings, during the discussion, that leads me to

         20  believe you would be anything but an outstanding

         21  member of the Board of Standards and Appeals,

         22  someone who would bring an integrity and an

         23  experience working on a community and borough level

         24  to this Board. And this Board is a very, very

         25  important agency, and they are in a position where
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          2  they can affirm the integrity of the neighborhood,

          3  or make dramatic changes to the integrity of

          4  neighborhoods that can never be undone. To have

          5  someone who was in a position of a Borough

          6  Commissioner I think will bring that perspective to

          7  the Board.

          8                 In addition, I want to thank the

          9  Administration for working with us in this two-week

         10  period. I know there has been some speculation that

         11  perhaps the Administration has not been as

         12  forthcoming in information, in responding for

         13  requests for information. I want to say there is

         14  nothing further than the truth on that point.

         15                 We may have asked for things that did

         16  not exist, in which case we did not get them because

         17  they do not exist. But there was not a question we

         18  asked that did not get answered, there was not a

         19  request for information, when that information that

         20  existed that it was not given back to us. So, I want

         21  to thank everyone for their attention over these

         22  past two weeks and their attention today, and I

         23  think by voting to appoint these two women to the

         24  Board of Standards and Appeals, we will go a long

         25  way to making that body a body that is more
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          2  representative of the needs of our neighborhoods and

          3  a Board that is very focused on protecting the

          4  integrity of our neighborhoods, and I hope everyone

          5  will vote in support of these appointees when we go

          6  to the floor in what will, God willing, be just a

          7  few minutes. And I will vote aye.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gardonick.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Aye on

         10  both.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Oddo.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: May I be

         13  temporarily excused to explain my vote?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Since I have you

         16  as a captive audience, Ms. Hinkson, I just want to

         17  say to you, Country Club diner, Walgreens, waving

         18  parking requirements, economic hardship, my tucas.

         19  Just remember those words.

         20                 MS. HINKSON: I will.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Because you're

         22  going to be hearing them in a couple of months.

         23  Economic hardship, my tucas, Walgreens, Country Club

         24  diner.

         25                 I vote aye and just say this about
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          2  the process, I think it's very unfortunate that from

          3  time to time we cross the line and are disrespectful

          4  to each other. I don't think it happens all that

          5  often, and I, for one, appreciate it when members

          6  are very passionate in defense of their community. I

          7  don't think this place has to be run like via the

          8  Harvard debate team rules, and, you know, it's good,

          9  I think, that the public sees that we are human

         10  beings that care and get angry and get frustrated,

         11  and we come in and we're working on their behalf.

         12                 I like to see it. Then, again, I like

         13  to see the next president tap a reporter on the chin

         14  and defend himself when he thinks he's being

         15  wronged. I like to show the people how much we care

         16  about the things in our community. So, I, for one,

         17  thought it was a good day all in all.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Your vote.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I vote aye.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Can we allow

         21  Billy, and then Council Member Felder, who is eager

         22  to say a final word?

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: The vote on the

         24  Committee on Rules, Privileges and Elections, M 353,

         25  Ms. Ottley-Brown, is adopted by a vote of 15 in the
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          2  affirmative, zero in the negative and no

          3  abstentions.

          4                 And M 355, is adopted by a vote of 14

          5  in the affirmative, one in the negative and no

          6  abstentions.

          7                 Council Members, please sign the

          8  Committee reports. Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Council Member

         10  Felder.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you.

         12  It's one minute.

         13                 First of all, Councilman Oddo doesn't

         14  know how to pronounce this. Somebody should

         15  straighten that out. But more importantly, for my

         16  colleagues, to my colleagues, I just want to say

         17  that the Speaker's Office is working diligently on

         18  trying to make drastic changes as to the way we do

         19  business here. Today is a perfect example where this

         20  was a 1:30 meeting -- I'm sorry, 10:30 meeting, it's

         21  3:20. And one of the suggestions that has been

         22  articulated is that when we know we have meetings

         23  that are going to take a long time, that they be

         24  done the day before.

         25                 So, I'm just asking my colleagues to
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          2  remember when these changes come up, remember

          3  sitting here at 3:20 in an afternoon, ending a

          4  meeting when the Stated was supposed to start two

          5  hours ago.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REYNA: Thank you, Council

          7  Member Felder.

          8                 I'd like to take this opportunity to

          9  once again thank Ms. Hinkson, Ms. Ottley-Brown, and

         10  especially to thank -- this meeting has not

         11  adjourned. To thank the staff of this Committee,

         12  Chuck Davis, Crystal, Reggie, Barbara, who have

         13  diligently sacrificed their whole summer preparing

         14  for these appointments. Thank you very much.

         15                 This meeting is now adjourned.

         16                 (Hearing concluded at 3:20 p.m.)
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